
CC 2/6/24  Page 1 of 2 

City of Depoe Bay 
City Council Regular Meeting 

February 6, 2024 – Tuesday, 6:00 PM 
Depoe Bay City Hall – 570 SE Shell Avenue 

 
 

The Meeting Location is Accessible to the Public 
 
To Join Zoom from Your Computer, Tablet, or Smartphone: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3850131421?pwd=dnVZa0lxbFRHWHIwMndMT3VjUjI2QT09 
Meeting ID:  385 013 1421 
Passcode:  wx02sD 

To Join Zoom from Your Phone: 
Phone: (253) 215-8782 
Meeting ID: 385 013 1421 
Passcode: wx02sD 

 
Please Note:  In the event of Zoom Technical Difficulties the Telephone Conference System will be utilized. 

Dial (888) 204-5987, access code 9599444 
 

Public comments may be made via email up to two hours before the meeting start time at 
info@cityofdepoebay.org 

 
 

AGENDA
 
A. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

B. Call Meeting to Order and Establish a Quorum 
 

C. Changes and Additions to the Agenda 
 

D. Consent Agenda  
Covers routine administrative matters that are not generally discussed and may all be approved as 
recommended in a staff report. The mayor will provide an opportunity for a Council member or citizen to 
ask that an item be pulled from the consent agenda for discussion. These items will receive separate 
action. All items not removed will be approved by a single motion of the Council. 

1) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – November 21, 2023 
2) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – December 5, 2023 
3) Appointment of Budget Officer – Resolution 557-24 
4) Accounts Payable Report 

  Action:           
 

E. Guest Presentations 
1) Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 
2) Little Whale Cove Community Renewable Energy Grant Application 

(Presentation & Discussion) 
 

F. Commission/Committee/Group Reports 
Emergency Preparedness and Houseless Advisory Committees 
Harbor, Planning, Parks, and Salmon Enhancement Commissions 

 

G. Public Comment 
The public has the opportunity to address the Council during "Public Comment.” Those attending 
virtually may raise their hand electronically or request to speak upon unmuting. The public may 
also send written comments by email to recorder@cityofdepoebay.org. Please limit comments to 
one page and include your name and address. Emails received before 5:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting will be included and read into the record for comments by the Council. 

 

H. Unfinished Business 
1) CA White Property (Update) 

 
2) Big Tire Park Vacation – Repealing Resolution 554-24 – Resolution 558-24 

Action:           
  

Page 1 of 92



CC 2/6/24  Page 2 of 2 

I. New Business 
1) Parks Reservation Request – Neighbors for Kids 

Action:           
 

2) Community Hall & Park Reservation Request – Fleet of Flowers 
Action:           
 

3) First Reading - Banning Fireworks – Ordinance 345-24 
Action:           

 
4) Parks and Recreation Commission – Ordinance 346-24 (Review & Discussion) 

 
5) Utility Assistance Program (Review & Discussion) 
 
6) Public Meetings Law Update (Discussion & Information) 

 
J. City Staff Reports 

1) Project Updates 
a. Bi-Weekly Meeting Notes from City Engineer 
b. Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna Complaint 

 

K. Closing Public Comment 
 

L. Council Comments 
 

M. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Depoe Bay City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If special accommodations are needed, please notify City 
Hall at (541) 765-2361 48-Hours in advance of the meeting so appropriate assistance can be provided. 

TTY#1-800-735-2900 
 

“This institution is an equal opportunity provider.” 
 

 
 
 

Rules of Conduct for Public Meetings 
 
No person shall be disorderly, abusive, or disruptive of the orderly conduct of the meeting. Microphones will be muted for remote participants 
unless called upon to speak or during public comment period. 
 
Persons shall not comment or testify without first receiving recognition from the presiding officer and stating their full name and city of 
residence.  
 
During public hearings, no person shall present irrelevant, immaterial, or repetitious testimony or evidence. 
 
There shall be no audience demonstrations such as applause, cheering, display of signs, or other conduct disruptive of the meeting. If online 
participant(s) disrupt the meeting, the participant(s) microphone and webcam will be turned off. If disruption continues, the participant(s) will 
be removed from the meeting. 

Page 2 of 92



 

1 | P a g e  
 

Depoe Bay City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, November 21, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
Depoe Bay City Hall 
 
PRESENT: K. Short, J. King, R. Beasley, L. Bedingfield, V. Sovern, F. Recht, A. Watson 
ABSENT: None. 
STAFF: Public Works Director B. Weidner; City Recorder Kimberly Wollenburg 
GUEST(S): Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office Deputy Casey Elfstrom 

 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLIEGIENCE 

 
B. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

Mayor Short called the meeting to order and established a quorum at 6:00 PM. 
 

C. CHANGES AND ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Councilor Beasley asked to move the emergency preparedness discussion to the 
agenda item regarding the first reading of the ordinance to update the 
Committee. Council concurred with the move. 

 
D. CONSENT AGENDA 

Accounts Payable Report 
Councilor Recht asked for clarity about the purchase of the holiday lights. City 
Recorder Wollenburg said that they were to replace the lights for the City Christmas 
tree. 
 
Councilor Beasley asked about the Revenue-Expenditure report. He asked if 
everyone understood the report saying he’s not clear about the cash on hand and 
the format of the report. 
 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Councilor Recht; seconded by 
Councilor Watson. 
  

Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 

 
E. GUEST PRESENTATIONS 

1) Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 
Lincoln County Sheriff's Office Deputy Casey Elfstrom provided an update 
regarding the previous month’s law and traffic enforcement in the City. He 
noted that he had a few calls that he normally doesn’t get in the City but 
realized it was nice that he had the time to take time to invest in addressing the 
issue. Mayor Short asked about the sting operations. Deputy Elfstrom shared that 
there were four dedicated deputies working from the base of Cape 
Foulweather to Boiler Bay. Mayor Short asked if it was going to be done on a 
regular basis. Deputy Elfstrom thinks it might be planned for a quarterly event. 
 
Councilor Sovern asked about crosswalk issues. Deputy Elfstrom said that it is 
something he watches for but he hasn’t issued a citation for one yet. He also 

Page 3 of 92



 

2 | P a g e  
 

updated the Council that the rules aren’t sidewalk to sidewalk. If a pedestrian is 
in the adjacent lane with no traffic, then there is no issue. It’s only if in the same 
lane as traffic. 
 

F. COMMISSION / COMMITTEE / GROUP REPORTS 
Emergency Preparedness – Councilor King said that the Committee had radio 
training recently. She said that two Council members attended to pick up their 
radios. Additional training will follow. She shared that Public Works Director Weidner 
was able to get two cache containers for the price of one. Councilor Recht asked 
to know when there will be another radio training. 
 
Houseless Committee – Is having a Town Hall on November 27 to talk to participants 
about houseless and the City’s plan. 

 
Harbor Commission – Booner Zimmerman said the Harbor is in winter mode. He said 
the parking lot has been restriped as well as yellow pedestrian control lines. In 
addition, they are still working on the security cameras for the Harbor and boat 
launch area. He said the docks are currently debris-free but crab season starts next 
week so likely to see crab pots back on the docks. There are new signs that look 
nice in the area. 
 
Councilor Beasley said he has a concern about the entrance to the harbor, 
adjacent to the sign, has really deteriorated and every day he sees people trip on 
the hole. Councilor Sovern noted she mentioned this to the Public Works Director. 
Public Works Director Weidner said there won’t be hot mix to do stronger repairs 
until they start making it in the spring but the cold patch work is on the work list to 
be done. 
 
Parks Commission – None. 

 
Planning Commission – Nothing to add. 
 
Salmon Enhancement Commission – Beanie Robson addressed the Council 
regarding the fact that he hasn’t gotten a response from the biologist but believes 
between this meeting and the first part of December, they should be receiving the 
eggs. He’s looking for resolution regarding the issue of access. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said that she spoke to the City Attorney who said because the 
Commission is covered under the City’s insurance, the Commission members are 
covered; however, there is no resolution to the general public access at this time. 

 
G. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 
 
H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

1) Property Acquisition Update (Discussion) 
Mayor Short said that the seller rejected the City’s offer and believes we should 
withdraw from the grant process since there is no current intent to sell as the 
seller rejected the bid. 

Page 4 of 92



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Councilor Recht said she doesn’t agree as she thinks there is time. She said last 
time she encouraged the seller to see if he can get other comparables. He said 
he wants to sell it to the City and isn’t realistic about what he wants.  
 
Mayor Short said how much more time should be provided. He was offered a 
deal, and he rejected it. Councilor Recht said that was to be expected. She 
said she thinks it’s worth speaking to him. Mayor Short said the City isn’t going to 
meet his demand. Councilor Recht says the City has a little bit of room to make 
a larger offer. Mayor Short said that the City has spent $20,000 and staff time so 
far and the seller should come to the City and present his offer. She said he’d be 
welcome to come in and give us an offer but until he does that, we don’t have 
anything to move forward with. 
 
Councilor King noted that there was a discussion regarding someone talking to 
him. Councilor Recht said there was no communication and that we shouldn’t 
cancel the grant as we wouldn’t be able to get reimbursed if we move forward. 
Mayor Short said we don’t have a valid purchase agreement. Councilor 
Bedingfield said we can be in a bit of a holding pattern and doesn’t see the 
value in cancelling the grant. Mayor Short said she doesn’t see any value in 
moving forward when he hasn’t agreed to an amount. 
 
Councilor King said the City should talk to the property owner. Mayor Short said 
the City has spoken to the property owner. Councilor Bedingfield said we should 
have a conversation with him and hold off on cancelling the grant. More 
discussion followed regarding the property owner’s expectations, including 
offering a memorial bench or some sort of plaque or naming the park area.  
 
Councilor Beasley said that the reason the property owner is asking for 
$1,000,000 is because the City has given every indication that the City is 
desperate to get the property. While he agrees it would be a nice thing to have 
for the City but we’d drain Urban Renewal. Mayor Short says it has nothing to do 
with Urban Renewal. 
 
 After discussion, Council concurred with meeting with the property owner in 
executive session and hold off until January. 
 

2) Second Reading – Planning Commission Amendment – Ordinance 343-23 
 

Motion to read Ordinance 343-23 by title only made by Councilor Beasley; 
seconded by Councilor King. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 

 Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 

Page 5 of 92



 

4 | P a g e  
 

Motion to adopt Ordinance 343-23 on the Planning Commission membership 
made by Councilor Bedingfield; seconded by Councilor King. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 

 Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 

3) Recreational Immunity Support – Resolution 551-23 
City Recorder Wollenburg provided an update regarding recreational immunity 
and spoke about a recent meeting with the coastal cities and learned what 
each one was doing. She noted that most were talking about not putting signs 
up as it meant the city was acknowledging a problem. Discussion followed 
regarding the concern that our insurance provider has related to access to 
water as the concern. She shared that the Indian Road Trail is that the steps into 
the park are no safe and should be fixed. There was also discussion regarding 
North Point trail access points and that those might need to be closed since 
they are access to the North Point trail that runs along the beach. The Council 
concurred with leaving things as they are. Councilor Sovern asked if the County 
was planning on closing the trail.  
 
Motion to approve Resolution 551-23 recommending the restoration of 
recreational immunity rights with the revision of adding dog walking made by 
Councilor Bedingfield; seconded by Councilor Watson. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 

 Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
1) Adjustment of Water Bill – Cathy Clem 

Councilor Recht said she is very sympathetic to the request but doesn’t want to 
establish precedent and wonders if there is some way else there can be a fund 
for people to ask for a hardship and get consideration for support. She believes 
that sewer credit adjustment should be made because there is a policy. She 
asked for a separate fund or policy that relates to allowing people to apply for 
adjustments without having to establish a precedent for everyone getting a 
water credit. Councilor King concurred with Councilor Recht’s and asked City 
Recorder Wollenburg if other cities have such a policy. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said that other cities do offer programs of various kinds for 
assistance. Council concurred with the homeowner paying the calculation for 
the sewer adjustment and hold the water credit right now. Bruce Trent, Friends 
of Depoe Bay, Depoe Bay, said he’d like to know what the bill is on behalf of the 
Friends of Depoe Bay. Mayor Short said the City is looking into funding this for the 
homeowner. City Recorder Wollenburg said she would communicate with Mr. 
Trent as to the decision of the City Council after a review of options. 

 
2) Complaint – Utility Lines - Zitnik 

Stan Zitnik, 170 S Bayview Avenue, said they wrote a letter to the mayor and City 
Council and that while the item says complaint, it’s more of a concern and issue 
and concern with the dismissive attitude of staff about their cable issue. They 

Page 6 of 92



 

5 | P a g e  
 

would like the Council to consider that they understand when they moved into 
their home there was cable wire but were surprised when the additional cable 
was installed as none of the homes in that area have above ground utilities. He 
shared that Spectrum is supposed to place wires underground when there was 
underground conduit. He spoke about what he believes if the status of the 
conduit and ability to place the lines underground. He is requesting that the City 
work with Spectrum to look a running the lines underground. He would like the 
consideration of putting that line underground. 
 
Councilor Recht asked for confirmation regarding whether there is a line 
actually underground. Mr. Zitnik said when they first moved in, they were asked if 
they wanted the line underground and Century Link ran it below to their house 
using the conduit that was there. He spoke about other conduits in the area. He 
said they can track the cable from the pool down to the ground then 
underground to his house. Councilor Recht said to ask Spectrum. Mr. Zitnik said 
they met with Spectrum and they are willing to speak to the City. Councilor 
Recht said she didn’t think the City should pay for that as it would set a bad 
precedent. 
 
City Recorder Wollenburg said there is no underground conduit in front of the 
house. The line he’s talking about is the line from the pool to his house. There are 
other tubes with a line that contains power. Public Works Director said there is 
vacated conduit at the south pole that goes to the condos across the street. He 
shared that all of Bay View street was done in 2013. He said there is no cable 
conduit that goes from North to South. Councilor Beasley asked when the street 
will next be torn up. Public Works Director Weidner said that phase was done in 
2013 when they upgraded the water line and sewer line. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said that even if we had work planned, the City would still be 
charged for the cabling to be moved underground. 
 
Councilor Beasley said he’s concerned about the fact they always talk about 
the view shed and yet we have a franchise agreement that allows lines to be 
placed in resident’s view sheds. He thinks that $10,000 is a small price to do this 
for the Zitniks and others who ask for that. 
 
City Recorder Wollenburg said there is no ordinance that allows the City to 
enforce and protect the view shed and that if one is asked for, she would do 
the research to fine. She confirmed that Spectrum is following the rules and 
placing the lines 
 
Mr. Zitnik said it’s the kind of attitude that they are talking about having an 
ordinance and other people and they are just asking that on behalf of the City 
to take into consideration as to what they are doing and that things don’t affect 
everybody but it affects them.  
 
Mayor Short said that the City would work with Spectrum and the Zitniks and see 
if there are options. 
 
 

Page 7 of 92



 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
Councilor Beasley asked if the Planning Commission should be asked to 
incorporate underground utilities, and Mayor Short said it already is. 
 
Hassie Zitnik, 170 S Bayview Avenue, said she talked to the City Recorder and 
Public Works Director and she was home when Spectrum ran that wire and 
watched them string two cables and wrap one around the galvanized wire and 
asked them what they are doing noting that they were in her view. She said no 
one told them that they were going to put lines in her view that she paid for. She 
noted that the agreement says that new wires must be underground. Councilor 
Recht confirmed that it’s only if there are already lines. Ms. Zitnik said that she 
asked for the Spectrum and Wave agreements and thought her concerns were 
dismissed.  
 

3) Friends of Depoe Bay Community Support 
Councilor Sovern spoke about the information from the Friends of Depoe Bay 
and what they are planning to do. She learned there is $500 in a miscellaneous 
community support category and she would like to motion to provide money to 
the organization to support the events they’ve planned. Mayor Short said that’s 
a budget item that is done during the budget season.  
 

4) First Reading – Amend Ordinance 333-22 Emergency Preparedness Committee – 
Ordinance 344-23 
Councilor Beasley noted that he’d like to thank Councilor King saying that his 
concerns about public meetings law have been addressed and that her 
minutes are superb. He also noted that the even last spring was amazing. He 
noted that his concerns are the emergency operations plan, the caches, and 
the siren warning system. He noted he has read the goals of the Committee 
adopted in February and his thoughts are they weren’t really clear as to what 
the Committee would do and how they would accomplish. He then reviewed 
the emergency operations plan and said that has everything in there and asked 
if that plan is guiding the Committee. Councilor King said they reviewed the 
plan and believe it is too generic of a plan and their goal is to start looking at 
what is needed for Depoe Bay. She said their goal is to determine how prepared 
the City is. Councilor Beasley said they might consider reviewing the City’s goals 
as they have a fire break plan in there. 
 
Councilor Beasley said that he read there were nine caches in the area and 
confirmed that they were neighborhood caches and that the City is in process 
of creating one if not two caches for the City. Councilor King noted that the fire 
department has a cache at City Hall, and the Committee said they’d like to 
ensure what happens to the City, if the City is supported in an emergency. 
Discussion followed regarding how many people would need to be supported in 
the event of an emergency and participation by Worldmark. Councilor King 
noted that there was an emergency/safety person for Worldmark who attended 
a meeting and is still new enough to the role to be learning what needs to be 
done. Right now, Worldmark’s plan is a flashlight and a map. Discussion followed 
that the City doesn’t have dedicated emergency preparedness staff to do a lot 
of the work. 

Page 8 of 92



 

7 | P a g e  
 

 
Councilor Beasley said that the emergency operations plan is the solution to 
everything we need. Mayor Short says it doesn’t address how we take care of 
people in an emergency. Councilor Beasley asked if things could be bought for 
the cache now and Councilor King said yes. Councilor Beasley said he thinks it’s 
great for the neighborhoods to have their own caches which means less for the 
City to take care of. Councilor Beasley said he thinks it’s essential to centralize 
the City caches and the Committee should focus on what the City needs. 
Discussion followed regarding ideas to support neighborhoods and the City. 
 
Motion to do a first reading of title only of Ordinance 344-23 amending 
Ordinance 333-22 made by Councilor Watson; seconded by Councilor 
Bedingfield. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 

Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 
Councilor Beasley said that the Committee members are tired and stretched 
thin and doesn’t see how adding one more meeting per month will make a 
difference. Councilor King said that there is so much enthusiasm and she wants 
to keep things going.  
 

5) Adoption of City Salary Schedule 
Mayor Short introduced the resolution.  
 

Motion to approve Resolution XXX-24 do a first reading of title only of Ordinance 
343-23 made by Councilor King; seconded by Councilor Recht. 

 
Councilor Recht said that Exhibit A needs to be labeled. She also asked about 
the two colors in some of the categories. City Recorder Wollenburg said that in 
some of the positions, there are two people and one color is for one and the 
second is for the other. Councilor Beasley asked for clarification on the changes 
versus the budget. City Recorder Wollenburg said that some of the differences is 
that there are positions which are being held by one person, one hasn’t been 
filled for a while and we didn’t hire seasonal employees. 
 
Councilor Beasley asked about pulling the Administrative Assistant position and 
the Council majority did not agree. He believes the Administrative Assistant 
position is primarily the result of the projects of individual City Council members. 
 

  Vote: Motion Passed 6/1 
 Ayes: Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 Nays: Beasley 
 

6) Administrative Assistant Classification 
Mayor Short noted that Councilor Beasley has made it quite clear that staff does 
not need help in the office, and she disagrees noting that the current City 
Recorder is working 70, 80, 90 hours a week and the Deputy Recorder is busy 
handling the planning/building and harbor support. 

Page 9 of 92



 

8 | P a g e  
 

 
Motion to approve Resolution 544-23 made by Councilor Bedingfield; seconded 
by Councilor King. 

 
Councilor King said that many others on the Council have addressed how much 
our City Recorder is appreciated and how much they agree she needs the 
support. She said they’ve been asked not to give staff a lot and we don’t want 
to overwork the staff. Councilor Recht noted that last time Granicus was 
specifically addressed and didn’t see that specifically mentioned and would like 
to call it out as a big revenue potential. The Council discussed that it’s not 
specifically called out but that it would work that the Administrative Assistant 
would work on vacation-related ordinances as well and this would be updated 
in the classification. 
 
Councilor Beasley said he’s still concerned because even though they say they 
won’t add more but then there are additional meetings and projects that keep 
getting dragged out. He’s just not convinced this should be done due to our 
financial position. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 6/1 

  Ayes: Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
  Nays: Beasley 

 
7) Request for Proposal – Auditing Services 

Mayor Short met with the County Administrator who expressed the 
challenges they are having with their auditor and her recommendation is 
that the City send a termination letter to the City’s auditor immediately 
and move forward with a RFQ for a new City auditor. Discussion followed 
regarding that there is no pressure on auditors to do the job in a timely 
fashion. Councilor Beasley asked about the current agreement, and City 
Recorder Wollenburg said that the agreement doesn’t have any specific 
performance deadlines and it appears to be a standard agreement that 
a lot of auditors use but that might go away given the challenges cities 
are having. 

Motion to approve the termination of the current City auditor and to move 
forward with the RFQ for a new City auditor made by Councilor Beasley; 
seconded by Councilor King. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 

  Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 

8) Agate Beach Landfill 
Mayor Short provided an update and information on the landfill area noting 
that there is a large metal building that needs to be removed and that the City 
will be paying a little extra on the billing to get this work done. She shared that 
the City of Newport owns the building but the Consortium is dedicated to 
managing the effort of having it removed. 

Page 10 of 92



 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
9) Emergency Preparedness Committee 

Handled under item J4 above. 
 

10) December 19, 2023 City Council Meeting 
Mayor Short noted that there is not usually a second meeting in December due 
to the holidays. 
 
Motion to cancel the December 19, 2023 Council meeting due to the holidays 
made by Councilor Beasley; seconded by Councilor Bedingfield. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 7/0 

 Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Sovern, Watson 
 

11) Watershed Protection 
Councilor Beasley said he attended the meeting by Zoom and it confirmed a lot 
of things that were recently discussed regarding the need for protection of our 
watershed. He shared some highlights regarding climate change and the affect 
on water and noted that cities are being recommended to consider water 
conservation efforts. There was discussion about emergency response related to 
the loss of water during an event and having a back up system. He noted that 
while the City has specific water sources, all the gulleys and other things also 
provide source water and he hopes that we can work with the timber 
companies. 
 

J. CITY STAFF REPORTS 
Councilor Bedingfield asked about when the Lingcod Parking Lot would open. City 
Recorder Wollenburg said that staff met with the concerned residents and the City 
Engineer on site to provide an erosion control plan to manage stormwater. The idea 
is to begin working on it after the holidays. She said the residents have been 
concerned about the erosion of the bank to the back of the lot and ensuring 
stormwater won’t affect their properties. 
 
Councilor Recht asked about the work on the Highway 101 bridge. Public Works 
Director Weidner said it’s redoing pipes and brackets on the bridge. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said that ODOT will replace the pipes; however, they want the City to 
do the brackets. 
 
Councilor Recht asked about survey and status of Ellingson. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said that this is something on her list to do but she has not worked on it 
due to other competing priorities. 
 
City Recorder Wollenburg provided an update regarding the Harbor Docks 2-4 bid 
protest noting that the Court granted a temporary restraining order to prevent the 
City from awarding the contract. Because the City Attorney doesn’t have the 
experience we need in this matter, the City Recorder had to find another attorney 
firm which took time; however, she was able to find an attorney firm to represent 
the City in this matter. 
 

Page 11 of 92



10 | P a g e

Councilor Beasley asked if the City is exposed to any other kind of lawsuit, and City 
Recorder Wollenburg said that the City is likely to be exposed in some way 
depending on what the ruling is. The new attorney firm hasn’t provided information 
on that. 

Councilor Beasley asked about a date for the small claims matter. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said there isn’t one until the defendant has been served. 

Councilor King asked if the City will be changing their hours. City Recorder 
Wollenburg said currently the office hours are Monday through Thursday 8 AM to 4 
PM but staff work 8 AM to 4:30 or 5 PM (depending on how long they take for lunch) 
and the office is closed on Fridays but staff work. There is no need to change hours 
at this time. 

K. CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENTS
Sule Wiesnewski, Depoe Bay, thanked everyone for their hard work and wished a
happy holiday season and good new year.

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS
Beasley – None.

Bedingfield – None.

King – None.

Recht – None.

Short – Happy Thanksgiving!

Sovern – None.

Watson – None.

M. ADJOURNMENT. Meeting adjourned by Mayor Short at 8:20 PM.

Submitted by: Reviewed by: 

Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder Kathy Short, Mayor 

Page 12 of 92



 

1 | P a g e  
 

Depoe Bay City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, December 5, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
Depoe Bay City Hall 
 
PRESENT: K. Short, J. King, R. Beasley, L. Bedingfield, F. Recht, A. Watson 
ABSENT: V. Sovern 
STAFF: Public Works Director B. Weidner; City Recorder Kimberly Wollenburg 
GUEST(S): Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office Deputy Casey Elfstrom 
  Lincoln County Homeless Advisory Board Strategic Plan – Morant Mcleod 
 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLIEGIENCE 

 
B. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

Mayor Short called the meeting to order and established a quorum at 6:00 PM. 
 

C. CHANGES AND ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
None 

 
D. CONSENT AGENDA 

October 24, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes 
November 7, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes 
November 7, 2023 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
Accounts Payable Report 
 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Councilor Watson; seconded 
by Councilor Bedingfield 
  

Vote: Motion Passed 6/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 

 
E. GUEST PRESENTATIONS 

1) Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office 
Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office Deputy Elfstrom Deputy Elfstrom shared that he 
is a training officer and his role is to be a shadow to help a new deputy get 
the training he needs to be certified. Councilor Beasley thanked Deputy 
Elfstrom for his service noting that he’s heard good things from people and 
they appreciate him being out and about. Councilor Beasley asked if he 
gives out parking tickets and Deputy Elfstrom said he does every once in a 
while. Councilor Beasley asked if Deputy Elfstrom has given out citations for 
any other ordinances in the City and Deputy Elfstrom said no. 
 
After Councilor Beasley confirmed that tickets are sent to Newport, he said 
there is no reason to send these tickets to Newport when the City charter 
allows the City to set up a municipal court. Councilor Beasley would like to 
see the Council direct the City Recorder to research having a court. 
Councilor Bedingfield said she doesn’t think this is a priority given the work the 

Page 13 of 92



 

2 | P a g e  
 

City Recorder is already doing. Mayor Short suggested during budget season 
and Council confirmed. 
 

2) Lincoln County Homeless Advisory Board Strategic Plan – Morant Mcleod 
Mayor Short introduced Ernest Stephens of Morant Mcleod. She asked Mr. 
Stephens if he could start on the recommendations and work from there. 
Before he got started, Mayor Short asked the County Administrator, Tim 
Johnson, about how setting up the advisory board would happen. Mr. 
Johnson said that the board is already set up and will remain in existence. He 
said in the context of that, there is a sustainability plan to continue to fulfil the 
requirement of the mission statement. Mayor Short asked about requirements 
to track funds coming in and leaving. Mr. Johnson confirmed that he is the 
person responsible for this. Brief discussion followed regarding the 
membership of the board and the processes in the bylaws. 

 
Councilor King expressed her appreciation for all of the hard work everyone 
has done and the support provided from local government. 
 
Discussion followed regarding a big issue of young people in Lincoln County 
who are couch-surfing or homeless and sleeping in forests as they need. Mr. 
Stephens addressed the specifics received from the Lincoln County School 
District about where young people are sleeping. 

 
Mr. Johnson shared that Lincoln County is continually identified as a low-
income county, and we are losing residents. He said that the strategic plan is 
the right pathway and framework for how success can be achieved. Mr. 
Johnson provided a brief background of the formation and noted that there 
is funding and suggests continuing to watch how things unfold and right now 
there is no request for funding at this time. 

 
Mr. Johnson said that leadership needs to continue with the policy side and 
framework and make sure that every year when the County comes back 
with a report, they need to question the information and data thoroughly 
whether being done in a timely manner and within budget. He feels 
confident that the County is heading in the right direction and noted that this 
could not have been achieved without the unified efforts of the various cities 
and groups in Lincoln County. 

 
Councilor Beasley said he believes there is a common issue within the 
government of mistaking goals with accomplishments. He says what he sees 
are goals but not recommendations or suggestions on where things 
(particularly housing) are going to come from. Mr. Johnson reminded the 
Council that he gave out a handout where he shared the housing projects 
coming up or underway and that there are over 200 housing units under 
construction, recently completely, or planned.  
 

  

Page 14 of 92



 

3 | P a g e  
 

F. COMMISSION / COMMITTEE / GROUP REPORTS 
Emergency Preparedness – Councilor King shared that the next meeting of the 
Committee is on December 11. The Committee will continue to work on goals 
and set deadlines for the goals. 
 
Harbor Commission – Tadd Mick, Commissioner, said the Commission addressed 
how to handle government agencies and provided a recommendation to 
provide a discount of 50%, with the exception of Coast Guard and not charging 
them. He said the security cameras are starting to be installed and noted that 
the boat launch restrooms have been vandalized with doors being broken 
down, and he suggested getting additional security there. 
 
Parks Commission – Robert Vincent, Chair of the Commission, provided a 
statement regarding the work the Commission is doing to expand the Parks 
Commission. Councilor Recht said she’ll be interested in seeing the proposal and 
asked if he had a conflict of interest since he was on the Chamber of 
Commerce. Mr. Vincent said he is not on the Chamber board. 

 
Houseless Committee – Mayor Short noted that the City had a Town Hall and was 
attended by three people but there was good discussion with those who 
attended. 

 
Planning Commission – Ruth Moreland, draft language on redoing the lighting 
ordinance and noted that the City Council approved going from 7 to 5 
members with a quorum of 3 which is who they have now. She also noted 
alternates were approved. 
 
Salmon Enhancement Commission – Beanie Robison waiting for resolution for 
access and shared that the salmon eggs will be here later this month. 
 

G. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Eric Sherman, Depoe Bay, noted he sits on the Planning Commission and noted 
that later on in the agenda there is Thank you to both of them for their years of 
support and service. 

 
H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

1) Second Reading – Amend Ordinance 333-22 Emergency Preparedness 
Committee – Ordinance 344-23 
 
Motion for a second reading by title only of Ordinance 344-23 made by 
Councilor Bedingfield; seconded by Councilor King. 
Councilor Beasley said he’s made a real effort to determine what the 
Committee has been doing and the direction it’s going and finds nothing 
that would support having two meetings a month and using more resources. 
He suggests the Council have a work session with the Committee to find real 
progress with this Committee. Mayor Short said she thinks that will be a first 
work session for January 24. 

 

Page 15 of 92



 

4 | P a g e  
 

  Vote: Motion Passed 5/1 
Ayes: Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 
Nays: Beasley 

 
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 344-23 made by Councilor Bedingfield; 
seconded by Councilor Watson. 

 
  Vote: Motion Passed 5/1 

Ayes: Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 
Nays: Beasley 

 
2) Moorage Fees – Other Government Agencies 

City Recorder Wollenburg briefly noted the Harbor Commission’s 
recommendation regarding this issue. Mayor Short asked if this would be 
immediate and City Recorder Wollenburg said it would as ODF&W hasn’t 
paid theirs yet. 
 
Councilor Beasley said he would do anything to agree with Mr. Mick and 
asked if he was aware that a lot of the vessels here are research vessels, 
noting that whale watching can be considered research and wouldn’t 
support providing a discount for that. He said he’s in favor of the Coast Guard 
but not in favor of reducing ODF&W. He’s against any giveaways right now. 
 
Motion to approve the recommendation from the Harbor Commission with a 
revision to remove research vessels made by Councilor Bedingfield; 
seconded by Councilor Watson 

  
Councilor Watson asked if whale watching companies who are also research 
vessels and if this includes them. Discussion followed. Mr. Mick said that wasn’t 
the intention. Motion modified to not include research vessels, only 
government agencies. 

 
Vote: Motion Passed 6/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
1) Application for Planning Commission Alternate Position – Greg Steinke 

 
Motion to appoint Greg Steinke as an alternate to the Planning Commission 
made by King; seconded by Watson. 

  
Vote: Motion Passed 6/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 

 
2) Application for Planning Commission Alternate Position – Judy Faucett 

 
Motion to appoint Judy Faucett as an alternate to the Planning Commission 
made by Beasley; seconded by King. 

Page 16 of 92



 

5 | P a g e  
 

  
Vote: Motion Passed 6/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson  

 
3) Professional Services Agreement – Samaritan Occupational Medicine 

City Recorder Wollenburg shared that the crew who work specifically in the 
wastewater treatment plant need particular vaccinations due to their work 
environment and the agreement with Samaritan is so that the Public Works 
Director can send crew for their vaccinations without going through a lot of 
paperwork. 
 
Motion to accept the Professional Services Agreement and authorize the 
mayor to sign made by Beasley; seconded by King. 

  
Vote: Motion Passed 6/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 

 
4) Reservoir Access Issues 

Christian Zupancic, Seaside, Oregon, the attorney for the homeowner, CA 
White regarding the property under discussion. Mr. Zupancic shared that 
there is a proposal on the table, and he provided an image of the subject 
property with the access issues between the water treatment plant and the 
reservoir. He said that they got a broker’s opinion that the property is worth 
$106,000 but Mr. White is willing to sell it to the City for $18,000 along with 
some utilities and a memorial plaque. 
 
City Recorder Wollenburg clarified that the utilities that were already 
approved were to Stanley Street, not up or on Stanley Street. Mr. White said 
that was the case. She further clarified that the City had already had plans 
since 2009 to put in a new hydrant and a line to Stanley as part of the Collins 
Street improvements project. 
 
Councilor Recht said there was mention of a lot line adjustment and asked 
who would pay for that adjustment. Mr. White said that there would be future 
meetings to work out that detail. She said that normally the property line 
would go to the center of the creek rather than the left side of the creek. If 
that was true, she would like to see it go to the middle of the creek. Mr. 
Zupancic said he and the City’s attorney would need to research and find 
out where to set that line.  
 
Councilor Beasley asked who owned the property to the south and Mr. White 
said someone from Seattle. Councilor Beasley asked if that is buildable, and 
Public Works Director Weidner said that area is quite steep but there is access 
to water and sewer if they do build. 
 
Councilor Bedingfield asked about building permits being waived. City 
Recorder Wollenburg clarified that was the original proposal which was 
amended by the one they provided before the meeting. 

Page 17 of 92



 

6 | P a g e  
 

Councilor Watson said she thinks this is a great idea and supports moving 
forward with the purchase. Will be tabled for now and revisit the discussion in 
January with a staff report/recommendation. 

 
5) Five Year Strategic Plan – Resolution 552-23 

 
Motion to approve Resolution 552-23 supporting the countywide 5-year homeless 
strategic plan made by Councilor Beasley; seconded by Councilor Watson 
  

Vote: Motion Passed 6/0 
Ayes: Beasley, Bedingfield, King, Recht, Short, Watson 

 
6) Scenic Land Property Purchase 

City Recorder Wollenburg shared she received information from the grant 
administrator after they did an analysis of our grant application and provided 
some things they wanted us to do to make the application more competitive. 
Other than minor issues, the big one is that we would need to have our Yellow 
Book appraisals redone since there are problems, as noted by the appraiser who 
did the review so to them, the appraisals don’t match. 
 
Councilor Beasley said that if Mr. Langston really wants to sell his property, we 
don’t need more appraisals, no more middleman. All he has to do is meet the 
City in the middle and believes we should put no more effort into this effort since 
the City has a tsunami of issues facing the City right now. Councilor Recht said 
she thinks that within about a week we’ll know whether there is any hope in 
working with Mr. Langston and that he promised to get back to her. She said he 
was apparently unaware that the City’s offer said purchase within 30 days and 
not having to wait for the grant. Mayor Short said that it was in the offer letter. 
Councilor Recht said that there is no reason to delay, and we would know within 
a week and that it is premature to rescind the grant application. She said there’s 
an ego thing going on with the appraisers and they should work this out and get 
on the same page without incurring more cost. She’s suggesting putting the 
decision off until our next meeting and that within a week or so, we should know 
one way or the way. 
 
City Recorder Wollenburg said that she spoke to one of the appraisers and he 
said will not change his recommendations as he is confident in his 
recommendations. She said that with the holidays coming up, she will need to 
get an RFP out for another set of appraisers. 

 
Mayor Short said she absolutely does not support another appraiser and that the 
City has done its due diligence and we have fiduciary responsibility to our 
citizens to do the right thing. Discussion followed regarding his letter of intent 
versus being a willing seller. 

 
Councilor Recht said that people aren’t understanding that the landowner 
wants one, that if we don’t get an appraisal to Yellow Book standards, then we 

Page 18 of 92



 

7 | P a g e  
 

won’t get the grant. Discussion followed regarding the possibility of it coming in 
later lower and City options ever that. 
 
Councilor Watson asked if there has been any other communication with Mr. 
Langston. City Recorder Wollenburg said no, other than when Councilor Recht 
spoke to him and the email where he noted he would not accept $735,000. 
 
Councilor Beasley asked how much in appraisals have been spent. City 
Recorder Wollenburg shared just a little over $20,000. Councilor King said it 
seemed like he is dragging his feet and hasn’t been willing to talk to us. That is a 
red flag for her. 
 
Councilor Recht said he did say he’s willing to talk to us and would get back to 
her in a few days. 
 
Councilor King asked if the Council waited 2-3 more days and was it worth it. 
Mayor Short said she doesn’t believe so. Councilor Beasley said we should just 
declare ourselves out of the competition. 
 
After discussion, the Council agreed to wait until this coming Friday (December 
8), and if we don’t hear from him on Friday, then the Council agreed to pull the 
offer and withdraw the grant application. The Council concurred with not saying 
anything to the grant administrators until we know for sure what the seller is going 
to do. 

 
J. CITY STAFF REPORTS 

Councilor Bedingfield asked how the City sewer system is doing with all of the 
recent rain. Public Works Director Weidner shared that we are at capacity and 
that they had to bypass due to one time when there was really heavy rain. Said 
they hadn’t had to do this since 2012. She also asked about the Eastridge project 
from the AKS engineer report and clarified location and details from Public Works 
Director Weidner. 
 
City Recorder Wollenburg updated the Council regarding the small claims 
action noting that it was served this past Saturday and the defendant has 14 
days to respond. 
 
Councilor Recht if Spectrum is the one who is supposed to repair the sidewalks, 
and it was confirmed that they are. 

 
K. CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Tadd Mick, Depoe Bay, asked about the status of the Harbor Docks 2-4 project 
and the recent bid protest. City Recorder Wollenburg explained that the hearing 
was cancelled and the City did get another attorney to handle this and the 
rebid, which was agreed upon by the complainant. 

 
L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Recht – Thank you all and have a good holiday. 

Page 19 of 92



 

8 | P a g e  
 

 
Bedingfield – Shared that she really enjoyed working with the Council. 
 
Short – Thank you to the Council for all the great work that’s been done and 
she’s looking forward to having another emergency preparedness session in the 
Community Hall. She then shared other highlights of the year. 

 
Beasley – Thank you. 
 
King – Councilor King said she appreciated the past year working with the 
Council. 
 
Watson – None. 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT. Meeting adjourned by Mayor Short at 8:18 PM. 
 

 
 
Submitted by:     Reviewed by: 
 
 
               
Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder  Kathy Short, Mayor 

Page 20 of 92



 

RESOLUTION 557-24 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE CITY RECORDER 
AS THE BUDGET OFFICER PER ORS 294.331 

 
 

THE CITY OF DEPOE BAY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City of Depoe Bay follows Oregon Local Budget Law ORS 294 in preparing its budget. ORS 
294.331 requires the governing body to designate one person to act as the Budget Officer. 
 
SECTION 1. The governing body of each municipal corporation shall, unless otherwise provided by 
charter, designate one person to serve as Budget Officer. The Budget Officer shall prepare or 
supervise the preparation of the budget document. The Budget Officer is responsible for publishing 
all of the notices required by Local Budget Law. The Budget Officer is also responsible for 
monitoring budget expenditures during the budget year and notifying the governing body of the need 
to make any budget changes required after adoption. 
 
SECTION 2. With this resolution, the Council designates the City Recorder as the Budget Officer. 
 
SECTION 3. This resolution takes effect upon the signature of the Mayor. 
 

 
Duly Passed and Approved by a duly constituted quorum of the Depoe Bay City Council this 6th 
day of February 2024. 
   
              
       Kathy Short, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 

Page 21 of 92



Reference Date Amount Notes
Reference Number: 35087 Fleet of Flowers $3,000.00
Invoice - 23/24 Donation 2/1/2024 $3,000.00 23/24 Donation

Reference Number: 35088 IDEA PRINT WORKS $1,519.70
Invoice - 16659 2/1/2024 $1,519.70 Crew Clothing

Reference Number: 35089 AKS Engineering & Forestry $10,328.75
Invoice - 1000-08-02 1/18/2024 $4,831.25 Depoe Bay Hills/Whale Watch Projects
Invoice - 10004-01-05 1/18/2024 $3,183.75 Bi-weekly meetings; Review of Land 

Use Records (Eastridge) & Preparing 
Const. Details (Lingcod Parking Lot)

Invoice - 10004-02C-02 1/18/2024 $1,615.00 Review of #4-GEO-PC-23
Invoice - 10004-07-03 1/18/2024 $698.75 Collins St Water Main Replacement 

Project

Reference Number: 35090 Analytical Laboratory Group $73.00
Invoice - 164206 1/25/2024 $73.00 Water Tests

Reference Number: 35091 Barrelhead Supply $65.74
Invoice - 341667 1/23/2024 $65.74 Painting Supplies for Docks, 

Bathroooms & Fish Cleaning Station

Reference Number: 35092 Brimar Industries $200.04
Invoice - 1388978 1/16/2024 $200.04 Labels & Signs

Reference Number: 35093 CECO, INC. $2,033.77
Invoice - IN0955131 1/17/2024 $1,741.35 WWTP Pool: Fuel for Lift Station 

Generator
Invoice - IN0955132 1/17/2024 $138.38 WWTP Pool: Fuel for Harbor Sewer 

Generator
Invoice - IN0955133 1/17/2024 $154.04 WWTP Pool: Fuel for Vista Sewer 

Pump

Reference Number: 35094 Central Lincoln PUD $13,406.27
Invoice - January 2024 Billing 1/24/2024 $13,406.27 Electrical Expenses

Register Activity

Fiscal: 2023-2024
Period: 2023-2024 - February, 2023-2024 - January
Council Date: 2023-2024 - February - AP 2/6/2024, 2023-2024 - January - AP 1/29/2024
Bank Accounts: Checking, Urban Renewal MMkt
Transaction Type: Check
System Type: Cash Management, Financials

 Printed by DEPOEBAY\accou on 2/2/2024 11:45:26 AM Page 1 of 4
Register Activity

Page 22 of 92



Reference Date Amount Notes
Reference Number: 35095 CenturyLink  $871.31
Invoice - 2/1/2024 1:02:08 PM 2/1/2024 $871.31 January 2024 City Phone Service

Reference Number: 35096 Davis Wright Tremaine LLP $11,767.50
Invoice - 7056297 1/23/2024 $11,371.50 Legacy Construction Bid Protest
Invoice - 7056298 1/23/2024 $396.00 Land Use Litigation

Reference Number: 35097 Department of Environmental Quality $3,689.00
Invoice - WQ24DOM-0954 1/10/2024 $3,689.00 Water Quality Permit - Annual Invoice

Reference Number: 35098 Ferguson Waterworks #3011 $1,454.33
Invoice - 1243480 1/18/2024 $380.93 Paint & Couplers/Gaskets
Invoice - 1243480-1 1/25/2024 $43.56 Couplers/Gaskets
Invoice - 1243646 1/20/2024 $136.00 Insert Stiffener
Invoice - 1243736 1/24/2024 $893.84 Meters

Reference Number: 35100 Grays Bargain Yard $412.20
Invoice - 541 1/23/2024 $412.20 Supplies for Lingcod Lot & Roads

Reference Number: 35101 Harold C. Fox $4,836.87
Invoice -2024-01-DB 2/1/2024 $4,836.87 January 2024 Planning Services

Reference Number: 35102 Jennifer Brooks $26.20
Invoice - 2/1/2024 1:35:44 PM 2/1/2024 $26.20 Milage

Reference Number: 35103 Ken Zwald Trucking $3,300.00
Invoice - 134239 1/25/2024 $3,300.00 WWTP I & I  Non Pool: Cleaning 

Sewer Lines

Reference Number: 35104 Lincoln County Solid Waste Consortium $186.99
Invoice - 20231213 LCSWC 2/1/2024 $186.99 Depoe Bay Portion

Reference Number: 35105 Mills Ace Hardware $861.28
Invoice - 663160/1 1/16/2024 $16.99 Batteries
Invoice - 663252/1 1/19/2024 $35.97 Supplies: Water & Sewer (Non-Pool)
Invoice - 663273/1 1/20/2024 $27.98 Paper Towels for Community Hall
Invoice - 663313/1 1/22/2024 $15.92 Keys - Lift Station
Invoice - 663503/1 1/29/2024 $115.44 Supplies: Streets & Parks/Bldgs
Invoice - 837745/3 1/10/2024 $90.95 Supplies: Strret & Parks/Bldgs & 

Sewer (Non Pool)
Invoice - 837746/3 1/10/2024 $7.00 Water
Invoice - 838662/3 1/30/2024 $412.03 Supplies: Harbor, Water, Streets & 

Parks/Bldgs
Invoice - C12901/1 12/29/2023 $139.00 Drill Kit

 Printed by DEPOEBAY\accou on 2/2/2024 11:45:26 AM Page 2 of 4
Register Activity

Page 23 of 92



Reference Date Amount Notes
Reference Number: 35106 Newport Ace Hardware & Outdoor $49.67
Invoice - 221404 1/24/2024 $49.67 WWTP NON POOL - Keys: Pump 

Station

Reference Number: 35107 Northstar Chemical Inc $6,532.00
Invoice - 272975 2/1/2024 $6,532.00 WWTP Pool: Resin Compound

Reference Number: 35108 NW Natural $203.32
Invoice - 20240122 - 461173-7 1/22/2024 $128.75 Gas - Community Hall
Invoice - 20240122 - 461435-0 1/22/2024 $74.57 Gas - City Hall

Reference Number: 35109 Pitney Bowes Inc $141.00
Invoice - 1024583022 1/9/2024 $141.00 Quarterly Postage Machine Rental

Reference Number: 35110 Platt $148.92
Invoice - 4T61134 1/17/2024 $148.92 Harbor Electrical Supplies

Reference Number: 35111 Shred Northwest $210.00
Invoice - 76648012524 1/25/2024 $210.00 Bulk Purge Shredding

Reference Number: 35112 Stericycle Inc - Shred-It $74.44
Invoice - 8006034704 2/1/2024 $74.44 Monthly Shredding Service

Reference Number: 35113 TCB Security Services, Inc $125.00
Invoice - 244754 1/20/2024 $125.00 Monthly Answering Service

Reference Number: 35114 The Automation Group $2,000.76
Invoice - W14106 1/25/2024 $1,084.88 WTP: Generator Xfer Switch 

Troubleshooting
Invoice - W14107 1/25/2024 $915.88 WWTP Pool: Generator Xfer Switch 

Troubleshooting

Reference Number: 35115 TWGW Inc NAPA Auto Parts $41.40
Invoice - 77630 1/16/2024 $41.40 WWTP Non Pool: Distilled Water

Reference Number: 35116 USA Blue Book $1,105.73
Invoice - 255492 1/24/2024 $526.26 WWTP Pool: Lab Supplies
Invoice - 263031 1/31/2024 $579.47 WWTP Pool: Lab Supplies

Reference Number: 35117 Wells Fargo Financial Leasing, Inc. $189.00
Invoice - 5028309852 1/17/2024 $189.00 January Copier Lease

 Printed by DEPOEBAY\accou on 2/2/2024 11:45:26 AM Page 3 of 4
Register Activity

Page 24 of 92



Reference Date Amount Notes
Reference Number: 20230129 - Cashier's 
Check

Bar None Auction $7,920.00

Invoice - 155400 1/26/2024 $7,920.00 Generator for Community Hall

Reference Number: 20240202 EFT 
UMPQUA

Umpqua Bank - Elan Financial Services $4,815.18

Invoice - 2/1/2024 2:22:28 PM 1/16/2024 $4,815.18 City Credit Purchases

Reference Number: 1150 Government Ethics Commission $75.66
Invoice - AIE19905 1/17/2024 $75.66 Annual Billing - Urban Renewal 

Agency

 Printed by DEPOEBAY\accou on 2/2/2024 11:45:26 AM Page 4 of 4
Register Activity

total: $81,665.03

Page 25 of 92



Page 26 of 92



Page 27 of 92



Page 28 of 92



Page 29 of 92



TO:  Depoe Bay City Council 

FROM:  Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 

DATE:  January 30, 2024, for February 6, 2024, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT:  Purchase of Property at City Reservoir 

 
Action Requested:  None. Update only. 
 
Discussion:  The property owner’s attorney sent the City’s attorney a draft 
agreement which was reviewed by City staff, including the City Planner and Public 
Works department. The agreement was returned to the property owner’s attorney 
to address the location of the South Depoe Bay Creek, the timeline of 
accomplishing the adjustment and sale, and clarification regarding the work to 
Stanley for water and sewer stubs and the work on Collins Avenue. 
 
At this time, staff is waiting for a response from the property owner’s attorney. 
 
Budget Impact: None at this time. Potential is estimated cost of surveyor  
 
Recommendation: None. Update only. 
 
Attachment(s): 
None. 

Page 30 of 92



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 558-24 
CITY OF DEPOE BAY 

 
A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION 554-24 INITIATING VACATION 

PROCEEDINGS AUTHORIZED BY ORS 271.080 OF THAT PORTION OF COVE VIEW 
LYING IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO AND BETWEEN LOTS 1, 2, 3, AND 4, BLOCK 16, 

DEPOE BAY (REDICATION), AND LOT 1 AND PARK, BLOCK 23, 
SUNDOWNE ADDITION TO DEPOE BAY 

 
WHEREAS on January 2, 2024, by Resolution 554-24, under the authority in ORS 271.130 and ORS 
271.080 the City initiated vacation proceedings; and, 
 
WHEREAS the City has heard from adjacent property owners that they do not want to assume 
responsibility for the vacated rights-of-way; and, 
 
WHEREAS under ORS 271.130 (1) no street area shall be vacated without the consent of the owners 
of the abutting property; and, 
 
WHEREAS since the City does not have the consent of the abutting property owners, the City has 
decided to stop vacation proceedings. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Depoe Bay that 
Resolution 554-24 initiating vacation proceedings for that portion of Cove View lying immediately 
adjacent to and between Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4, Block 16, DEPOE BAY (REDEDICATION), and Lot 1 
and Park, Block 23, SUNDOWNE ADDITION TO DEPOE BAY is hereby repealed in its entirety and 
vacation proceedings on referenced property is terminated. 
 
 
Approved and Passed this ____ day of February, 2024 by the City Council of the City of Depoe Bay. 
 
 
             
      Kathy Short, Mayor 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
       
Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 

Page 31 of 92



Page 32 of 92



Page 33 of 92



Page 34 of 92



Page 35 of 92



Page 36 of 92



Page 37 of 92



TO:  Depoe Bay City Council 

FROM:  Kim Wollenburg, City Recorder 

DATE:  January 28, 2024, for February 6, 2024, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT:  Repealing Ordinance 331-21 - Fireworks 

Action Requested: Council approval of Ordinance XXX-24 repealing Ordinance 
331-21 and replacing with updated code language banning the use, distribution,
and sale of fireworks within the City of Depoe Bay.

Discussion: As discussed during the January 23, 2023 Council meeting, Ordinance 
331-21 prohibits the discharging, or causing to be discharged, of any fireworks
within the City; however, it doesn’t prohibit the retails sales of fireworks.

Staff will review the land use development code for potential revisions to the 
prohibited uses within each zone. 

Budget Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Council first reading by title only of Ordinance 345-24 repealing 
Ordinance 331-21 banning the retail sales, distribution, and use of fireworks within 
the City of Depoe Bay. 

Sample Motion(s): I move to read, by title only, Ordinance 345-24. 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance 345-24 – Repealing Chapter 130.03 Fireworks and Adding a New

Provision to Section 130.99 Penalties

Page 38 of 92



ORDINANCE 345-24 
CITY OF DEPOE BAY  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DEPOE BAY 
REPEALING SECTION 130.03 FIREWORKS AND 

ADDING A NEW PROVISION TO SECTION 130.99 PENALTIES 

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2024, the Lincoln County Board of County Commissioners passed 
Ordinance 532 banning the use, sale, and possession of consumer fireworks as defined by ORS 
480.111 within their independent jurisdiction; and, 

WHEREAS, while the City of Depoe Bay has banned the use of fireworks within the City limits, the 
City Council wishes to ensure the City’s code matches the County code and expand the City’s ban to 
match Lincoln County; and,  

WHEREAS, the City of Depoe Bay and current coastal resources are not readily able to deal with 
the potential for a firework related conflagration as seen in other areas of Oregon; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to impose additional penalties for violations of this Ordinance 
to the vacation and short-term rental companies and individuals; and, 

NOW THEREFORE the City Council of the City of Depoe Bay ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Ordinance No. 331-21, Chapter 130.03, is repealed in its entirety and replaced with 
the attached Exhibit “A.” 

Section 2. Ordinance No. 157, Chapter 130.99, is amended to add a new part (D) as follows: 

(D) Violations of this Section by guests located at a registered vacation rental within the
City of Depoe Bay may result in the revocation of the vacation rental license at the
discretion of the City Council.

Introduced and first reading passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Depoe 
Bay on the ____ day of February 2024. 

Passed at the second reading and adopted by the City Council of the City of Depoe Bay on the 
____ day of February 2024. 

WHEREAS, the adoption of this ordinance is necessary to preserve the peace, health, safety, and 
welfare of the citizens of the City of Depoe Bay. This ordinance amendment shall be in full force and 
in effect thirty days after its adoption by the City Council of Depoe Bay. 

Approved and signed by the Mayor of the City of Depoe Bay this _____ day of February 2024. 

Kathy Short, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 

Page 39 of 92



EXHIBIT “A” 

130.03 Fireworks 

(A) All terms in Section 130.03 shall have the meaning as defined in ORS Chapter 480.

(B) The possession and/or use of consumer fireworks as defined by ORS 480.111, which
shall include the using, discharging, or exploding of consumer fireworks, is prohibited
within the City of Depoe Bay city limits.

(C) The sale of consumer fireworks, as authorized by ORS 480.160, is prohibited within
the City of Depoe Bay city limits.

(D) Subsections A and B do not apply to firework displays that are issued a public display
under ORS 480.130 to ORS 480.150 and have the Depoe Bay City Council’s
approval.

(E) The Lincoln County Sheriff's Office, acting under the authority granted by Lincoln
County, may confiscate, destroy, remove, or have removed at the owner’s expense, all
fireworks in violation of this section.

Page 40 of 92



TO:  Depoe Bay City Council 

FROM:  Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 

DATE:  January 28, 2024, for February 6, 2024, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT:  Parks and Recreation Commission 

Action Requested:  Council consideration of the amendment to the Parks 
Commission and the change to a Parks and Recreation Commission. 

Discussion:  The Parks Commission members have the desire to engage more in 
the community and have had discussions regarding incorporating recreation and 
community support in their charge as a Commission. They would like to provide 
support to the City with such events as the annual Polar Plunge and National Night 
Out or emergency preparedness events. 

There is also interest among the Commission to help with creating events like 
movies in the park or City-wide cleaning events to foster community. 

Budget Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Council consideration of the attached draft ordinance for the 
change from the Parks Commission to a Parks and Recreation Commission. 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance 346-24 Amending Chapter 32.07 Parks Commission with Exhibit

“A”.

Page 41 of 92



Ordinance No. 346-24 Amendment_Parks Commission Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 346-24 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE XXX TO CHANGE 
THE NAME OF THE PARKS COMMISSION TO PARKS & RECREATION 

COMMISSION, REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 206 AND REPLACE WITH A NEW 
CHAPTER 32.07 AND AMEND ORDINANCE 290 

WHEREAS, the City of Depoe Bay adopted Ordinance 206 establishing the Depoe Bay Parks 
Commission on September 6, 2022 to advise the City Council of matters concerning the upkeep 
and operation of the City of Depoe Bay parks and public use buildings; and, 

WHEREAS, the Parks Commission has recommended to the Depoe Bay City Council to change 
the Commission name to the Parks and Recreation Commission; and, 

WHEREAS, the Parks Commission has recommended to the Depoe Bay City Council that the 
duties and responsibilities, and charge, of the Parks Commission be expanded to cover recreational 
and community planning events. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Depoe Bay ordains as follows: 

1. The name of the Parks Commission is changed to the Parks and Recreation
Commission.

2. Ordinance No. 290 is amended to repeal Section 1.030 REMOVAL FROM OFFICE
in its entirety.

3. Ordinance No. 206 is repealed in its entirety and replaced with the attached Exhibit
“A.”

Introduced and passed at the first reading at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Depoe Bay on this ____ day of February 2024. 

Passed the second reading and adopted by the City Council of the City of Depoe Bay on this _____ 
day of February 2024. 

WHEREAS, the adoption of this ordinance is necessary to preserve the peace, health, safety, and 
welfare of the citizens of the City of Depoe Bay. This ordinance amendment shall be in full force 
and in effect thirty days after its adoption by the City Council of Depoe Bay. 

Approved and signed by the Mayor of the City of Depoe Bay this _____ day of February 2024. 

Kathy Short 
Mayor 

Attest: 

Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 

Page 42 of 92



Chapter Parks & Recreation Commission  Page 1 of 6 

EXHIBIT “A” 

CHAPTER 32: PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 

Rules and Regulations 
   32.01   Name 
   32.02 Purpose 
   32.03 Membership 
   32.04 Attendance 
   32.05 Termination of Membership 
   32.06   Resignation 
   32.07   Vacancies in Office 
   32.08   Compensation of Members 
   32.09   Organization of the Commission 
   32.10   Quorum 
   32.11   Voting 
   32.12   Meeting Time and Place 
   32.13   Special Meetings 
   32.14   Meetings to be Open and Public 
   32.15   Attendance at Meetings 
   32.16   Excused Absences 
   32.17   Order of Business 
   32.18   Location of Business Records 
   32.19   Commission Procedures 
   32.20   General Powers and Duties 
   32.21   Committees 

Page 43 of 92



 

Chapter Parks & Recreation Commission   Page 2 of 6 

 

Exhibit “A” 
Chapter 32.07 Parks and Recreation Commission 

 
§ 32.01 NAME. 
 
The name of the Commission shall be the “City of Depoe Bay Parks and Recreation 
Commission” (hereinafter referred to as “Commission”). 
 
§ 32.02 PURPOSE. 
 
In partnership with the community, the Commission is committed to enhancing the quality of life 
in Depoe Bay through the promotion of parks and recreation facilities and programs, including 
programs for senior citizens. The Commission will assist the City in creating and developing 
parks and facilities and in implementing programs which will provide for greater leisure, tourism, 
and educational opportunities. 
 
The Commission’s goals include promoting the development of parks, encouraging recreation 
and leisure time activities in the community as a whole, and assist in the administration of the 
overall vision and master plan for the development of future parks. 
 
The Commission shall work with members of the community to receive their input on park, 
recreational, and senior issues. 
 
§ 32.03 MEMBERSHIP. 
 
Membership shall consist of seven (7) members to be appointed by the City Council, not more 
than two (2) of whom may be non-residents of the City of Depoe Bay. Members shall serve a for 
(4) year term and may seek reappointment upon the conclusion of their term. 
 
§ 32.04 ATTENDANCE. 
 
If any member is absent from three (3) regular meetings consecutively, except under emergency 
circumstances, or shall be absent from fifty percent (50%) of the meetings held during any six-
month period for any reason, that member’s seat may be deemed vacant by the City Council. 
Any member of the Commission may be removed by a majority vote at any time without cause. 
 
§ 32.05 TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP. 
 
All members serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed during a term. 
Membership in the Commission shall automatically terminate upon any of the following 
occurrences: 
 

 The expiration date of the term of membership; 
 The member has three (3) unexcused absences per fiscal year from regular Commission 

meetings without cause and/or without notifying the President or City staff. 
 The member has a less than 60% attendance record each fiscal year (includes excused and 

Page 44 of 92



Chapter Parks & Recreation Commission  Page 3 of 6 

unexcused absences); 
 The member fails to attend one Commission training each term;
 Upon removal by a majority of the City Council, with or without cause;

§ 32.06 RESIGNATION.

Any Commission member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the City Recorder 
of the City of Depoe Bay and the president of the Commission. Any such resignation shall be 
effective upon receipt or upon any date specified therein. The acceptance of such resignation 
shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

§ 32.07 VACANCIES IN OFFICE.

Any vacancy in the Commission shall be filled by appointment made by the City Council for the 
unexpired portion of the term. 

§ 32.08 COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS.

The members of the Commission shall receive no compensation as such, except as the City 
Council may approve reimbursement to Commission members for out-of-pocket expenses. 

§ 32.09 ORGANIZATION OF THE COMMISSION.

President and Vice President: At the first meeting of the year, the Commission shall elect a 
president and a vice president from its membership. They shall hold office at the pleasure of the 
Commission. 

The president shall preside over all Commission meetings. The vice president shall preside over 
the meetings in the absence of the president. The president and/or vice president shall perform 
such other duties on behalf of the Commission as imposed by the Commission or ordinance. 

A vacancy in any office of the Commission may be filled by appointment through a majority 
vote of the Commission. The member appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of 
the term of the officer he or she replaces. If both the president and the vice president’s offices are 
vacant, then the Commission will appoint a member to serve as president pro tem for the 
purposes of conducting meetings and elections. 

§ 32.10 QUORUM.

A majority of the Commission membership shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of 
conducting Commission business, exercising its powers and all other purposes. 

§ 32.11 VOTING.

The concurrence of a majority of the members present at a Commission meeting shall be 
necessary to decide any question before the Commission. 

Page 45 of 92



 

Chapter Parks & Recreation Commission   Page 4 of 6 

 

 
§ 32.12 MEETING TIME & PLACE. 
 
The Commission shall meet regularly at least once each month. The regular meeting place of the 
Commission shall be as designated by the Commission from time to time as needed to conduct 
business. 
 
§ 32.13 SPECIAL MEETINGS. 
 
Special meetings may be held upon call of the president or vice president acting on the behalf of 
the president or of the majority of the membership of the Commission, for the purpose of 
transacting any business designated in the call, after notification of all members of the 
Commission by written notice personally delivered or mailed at least 72 hours before the time 
specified in the notice of the meeting. At such special meeting, no business other than that 
designated in the call should be considered. 
 
§ 32.14 MEETINGS TO BE OPEN AND PUBLIC. 
 
All meetings of the Commission and its standing committees shall be open and public to the 
extent required by the Oregon Public Meetings Law. All persons shall be permitted to attend any 
such meetings, except as otherwise provided by law. 
 
§ 32.15 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS. 
 
All members of the Commission shall be required to attend all Commission meetings unless such 
member has been excused from participation. 
 
§ 32.16 EXCUSED ABSENCES. 
 
A member’s absence from a meeting shall be excused if, prior to the meeting from which a 
member will be absent, the member notifies the president or City staff of his/her intent to be 
absent. At each meeting, after the meeting has been called to order, the president shall report to 
the Commission the name of any member who has so notified the president or staff of his/her 
intent to be absent. 
 
§ 32.17 ORDER OF BUSINESS. 
 
The order of business shall be established by the Commission. Agendas shall be published and 
posted in compliance with applicable state and local laws and rules. Provisions will be made for 
citizens with disabilities by contacting City staff. 
 

§ 32.18 LOCATION OF BUSINESS RECORDS. 
 
The records and official papers of the Commission shall at all times, during reasonable business 
hours, be subject to inspection by any Commission member, City Council, or members thereof. 

Page 46 of 92



Chapter Parks & Recreation Commission  Page 5 of 6 

The records and papers of the Commission shall be retained and disposed of in accordance with 
the Oregon Public Records Act, and shall be housed in the office of the City. 

§ 32.19 COMMISSION PROCEDURES.

The Commission may make, establish and alter rules and regulations for its governance and 
procedure consistent with the laws of the State of Oregon and with the Charter and Ordinances of 
the City of Depoe Bay. 

§ 32.20 GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES.

Act in an advisory capacity to the City Council and City staff on matters pertaining to public 
recreation, parks, recreation/community center facilities, and open space, playgrounds, and 
music and entertainment as may from time to time be performed in the City's parks; 

Aid in coordinating recreation and park services with any program of governmental agencies and 
voluntary civic organizations;  

Review recreational services, facilities, and parks that exist or may be needed, and advise the 
City Council as needed;  

Recommend to the City Council fees or charges to be paid by residents and nonresidents for use 
of city recreational facilities, or for participation in city recreational programs;  

Gather community opinions, needs and perceptions regarding recreational opportunities and 
needs;  

Make recommendations concerning beautification development and improvement of parks, 
beaches and recreation services;  

Recommend policies on recreation and park service for approval of City Council;  

Make studies and recommend rules and regulations for adoption by the City Council for the use 
and enjoyment of all public parks and recreational facilities;  

Participate in the development and implementation of public events on behalf of the city and 
sponsored by the recreation department and/or the parks and recreation commission. 

At the direction of the City Council, recommend and support program policies relating to various 
community service functions of the City, including, but not limited to, programs for youth, teens, 
seniors, and people with special needs. 

§ 32.21 COMMITTEES.

The Commission shall have the authority to and may establish standing or ad-hoc committees as 
necessary to accomplish the purposes set forth in Section 1.2 herein. Committees may meet to 

Page 47 of 92



Chapter Parks & Recreation Commission  Page 6 of 6 

discuss specific issues within the scope of responsibility for the Commission and to make 
recommendations for action by the Commission. Membership composition and terms shall be 
determined by the Commission for any committee created; however, no committee shall consist 
of more than two (2) Commission members, so as not to cause a majority of Commission 
members to serve on one (1) committee. 

Members on a standing or ad-hoc committee shall be appointed by the president with the 
approval of a majority of the Commission members. 

Committee(s) shall from time to time make reports, written or verbal, to the Commission. 

Page 48 of 92



TO:  Depoe Bay City Council 

FROM:  Kim Wollenburg, City Recorder 

DATE:  February 1, 2024, for February 6, 2024, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT:  Utility Assistance Program 

 
Action Requested: Council consideration of utility assistance program. 
 
Discussion: During the November 21, 2023 Council meeting, the City Council asked 
staff to research options for a utility assistance program for residents. Attached are 
a sample of various programs available from other cities. During the research, it 
appears that some programs are city programs that are managed by an outside 
agency. Others are managed by the city and paid for from the city’s budget. 
 

 City of Corvallis 
 City of Bend 
 City of Sweet Home 
 City of Hermiston 

 
There is also a Community Services Consortium for Lincoln County with an office 
based in Newport that offers utility assistance support. This is an independent 
company that the City could refer people to. Their requirements are fairly stringent. 
The City could place a link to the Consortium on the website as additional support. 
 
Budget Impact: Depends on the program selected by Council. 
 
Recommendation: Staff have no recommendation. Staff requests direction from 
Council. 
 
Sample Motion(s): No motion required. Just Council direction. 
 
 
Attachment(s): 

 City of Corvallis Low-Income Assistance Program materials 
 Low Income Discount Terms – City of Bend 
 Utility Assistance Program – City of Sweet Home 
 Email from City of Hermiston regarding option 
 Help Card from the Community Services Consortium 

Page 49 of 92



1/31/24, 1:46 PM City Services Billing Low-Income Assistance Program | Corvallis Oregon

https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/finance/webform/city-services-billing-low-income-assistance-program 1/4

Search

City Services Billing Low-Income
Assistance Program

The City of Corvallis’s low-income assistance

program is designed to assist with the City

Services bill.

If you qualify, the assistance program will

provide a credit of up to $53.55 each month. A
new application will need to be completed

annually. Applications can also be received

throughout the year, and may take up to 1

month for processing. Please review the Terms

and Conditions below before applying.

TERMS & CONDITIONS

The low-income assistance program will run by calendar year, and begin on January 1. A
new customer can submit to join at any time throughout the year. A new application will

need to be turned in annually to re-qualify. Applications may take up to one month to be

processed.

The Low-Income Assistance program provides up to a $53.55 credit monthly for single-
dwelling residential customers who pay the City Services bill for their residence, and who

participate in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), or Oregon Health

Plan (OHP), or school free lunch program. If you are applying for the low-income

assistance program through the school free lunch program at Corvallis School District,
you must have an approved application from the Nutrition Services Supervisor in order to

gain eligibility. A single-dwelling residence is one or more rooms with bathroom and

kitchen facilities designed for occupancy by one family such as single-dwelling homes,

FINANCE

OregonCorvallis
City of

Page 50 of 92

https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/sites/default/files/styles/gallery500/public/imageattachments/finance/page/35031/web_image_1_0.jpg?itok=hiVigaja
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/finance
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/


1/31/24, 1:46 PM City Services Billing Low-Income Assistance Program | Corvallis Oregon

https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/finance/webform/city-services-billing-low-income-assistance-program 2/4

detached townhouses, condominiums, zero lot-lines, etc., where the units have individual

water meters.

Customers who participate in one of these programs will complete an application, show

proof of their participation, and be approved before a credit will be applied.

HOW TO APPLY

Customers have two options to apply.

1. Download a PDF form to �ll out and return to the City of Corvallis.

English

Spanish

-OR-

2. Fill out an application online using the form below.

Name of Applicant *

The listed name of the applicant must also appear on the City Services bill for veri�cation purposes.

Home Address *

Mailing address (if di�erent)

Email

If you would like to receive a renewal reminder before assistance bene�ts expire annually, you must

provide an e-mail address.

Phone Number *

Account Number *

Customer Number *

Documentation

Please provide one (1) of the following items to show that you qualify for the low-
income assistance program. Please use the buttons below to upload a PDF or attach

Page 51 of 92

http://apps.corvallisoregon.gov/webdocs/showdoc.aspx?docID=3276627
http://apps.corvallisoregon.gov/webdocs/showdoc.aspx?docID=3276626


1/31/24, 1:46 PM City Services Billing Low-Income Assistance Program | Corvallis Oregon

https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/finance/webform/city-services-billing-low-income-assistance-program 3/4

an image, or email your material to lowincome.assistance@corvallisoregon.gov.

Oregon Health Plan

Please submit a copy of your Oregon Health Plan eligibility letter. The eligibility letter must include the

name of one member of the household that is listed as the City Services account holder(s), and is over

the age of 18 or legally responsible for the household.
Files must be less than 10 MB.
Allowed �le types: gif jpg jpeg png txt rtf pdf doc.

Choose File No �le chosen

SNAP Assistance

Please show proof of assistance through SNAP by submitting a recent copy of your statement of

bene�ts.
Files must be less than 10 MB.
Allowed �le types: gif jpg jpeg png txt rtf pdf doc.

Choose File No �le chosen

Free/reduced Lunch (Corvallis School District)
If you have a child who receives free or reduced lunches at the Corvallis School District, we can use

that information to satisfy the requirements for this application. Please show proof by attaching your

letter of enrollment from the Corvallis School District of participation in the free lunch program.
Files must be less than 10 MB.
Allowed �le types: gif jpg jpeg png txt rtf pdf doc.

Choose File No �le chosen

Name of Child

Name of School

Authorization to Contact School District

Consent

Please check the box next to "Consent" to authorize the school district to provide veri�cation of

free/reduced lunch status for the purposes of this application.

Certi�cation *

Yes

By checking "yes" below, you a�rm that the above information is true and complete. You understand

that City of Corvallis sta� may need to verify the information on your application and that

misrepresenting information will result in denial of the requested assistance and may prohibit future

eligibility for low-income assistance for the City Services bill.

Page 52 of 92



1/31/24, 1:46 PM City Services Billing Low-Income Assistance Program | Corvallis Oregon

https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/finance/webform/city-services-billing-low-income-assistance-program 4/4

501 SW Madison Ave | Corvallis, OR 97333 | (541) 766‑6900

  ©2024 City of Corvallis, OR. All Rights Reserved.   

Select Language  ▼

Contact Us Sitemap Emergency Preparedness Sta� Login

Submit

Upcoming Events

City Budget Commission Meeting 05/07/2024 - 6:00pm | Downtown Fire Station: Council

Chambers

City Budget Commission Meeting 05/09/2024 - 6:00pm | Downtown Fire Station: Council

Chambers

City Budget Commission Meeting 05/13/2024 - 6:00pm | Downtown Fire Station: Council

Chambers

View the Finance Calendar

Contact Information

Finance Department

541-766-6990

�nance@corvallisoregon.gov

View Full Contact Details

Page 53 of 92

http://www.vimeo.com/cityofcorvallis
http://www.vimeo.com/cityofcorvallis
http://www.twitter.com/cityofcorvallis
http://www.twitter.com/cityofcorvallis
http://www.facebook.com/cityofcorvallis
http://www.facebook.com/cityofcorvallis
https://nextdoor.com/city/corvallis--or/
https://nextdoor.com/city/corvallis--or/
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/community/webform/contact-us
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/sitemap
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/fire/page/resilience-planning-emergency-preparedness
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/user/login?current=node/35031
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/advisorygroups-bc/page/city-budget-commission-meeting
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/advisorygroups-bc/page/city-budget-commission-meeting-0
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/advisorygroups-bc/page/city-budget-commission-meeting-1
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/calendar?term_node_tid_depth=32
mailto:finance@corvallisoregon.gov
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/finance/custom-contact-page/finance-contact-information


Corvallis City Services Billing Low-Income Assistance Program 
City of Corvallis City Services Billing - 500 SW Madison Ave. Corvallis OR 97333 

Phone (541) 766-6949 www.corvallisoregon.gov 

Name of applicant: 

Home address  Apt. # City Zip 

Mailing address (if different) Apt. # City Zip 

Email  Phone 
If you would like to receive a renewal reminder before assistance benefits expire annually, you must provide an e-mail address. 

Account/Customer Number_______________________________ 

The City of Corvallis’s low-income assistance program is designed to assist with the City Services bill. If you qualify, 
the assistance program will reduce your City Services bill by up to $53.55 monthly. A new application will need to be 
completed annually. Applications can also be received throughout the year, and may take up to 1 month for processing. 
Please see the reverse side of the application for further Terms. Please review, and fill out, the appropriate information 
below.  

PROVIDE JUST ONE OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS TO SHOW THAT YOU QUALIFY FOR THE 
CITY SERVICES BILL LOW-INCOME ASSISTANCE PROGRAM. YOU MAY SUBMIT INFORMATION 

VIA MAIL, IN PERSON, OR EMAIL AT CITYSERVICES.BILLING@CORVALLISOREGON.GOV 

Do you have a child that receives free/reduced lunch within Corvallis School District? 
Please provide a letter of enrollment from the Corvallis School District 509J to 

verify participation. 
-OR- 

Please submit a copy of your Oregon Health Plan eligibility letter. The eligibility letter must include the name 
of one member of the household that is listed as the City Services account holder(s), and is over the  age of 18 

or legally responsible for the household.  
We do not accept an OHP card, such as the examples below. We only accept an approval notice.  

-OR- 
Proof of public assistance with SNAP.  

Please submit a copy of your Statement of benefits. 

I agree that the above information is true and complete. I understand that City of Corvallis staff may need to verify the 
information on my application and that misrepresenting information will result in denial of the requested assistance 
and may prohibit future eligibility for low-income assistance for the City Services bill. 

Signature Today’s Date 

Page 54 of 92

http://www.corvallisoregon.gov/


FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
Date application was received:  ________________                           
Date application was reviewed: ________________

Assistance approved? YES  NO  
(If no – why?)  __________________

    Reviewed by staff (initials) _______ 

Terms and Conditions for the Corvallis City Services Billing Low-Income Assistance Program 

The low-income assistance program will run by calendar year, and begin on January 1st. A new customer can submit 
to join at any time throughout the year. To be approved, a customer must be within City limits, and the customer name 
must be listed as the account holder(s) to qualify. 

The Low-Income Assistance program provides up to a $53.55 credit monthly for single-family residential customers 
who  pay the  City Services bill for their home, and who participate in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program  
(SNAP), or Oregon Health Plan (OHP), or school free lunch program. This is a new program, meaning the exact 
credit will not be known until the number of applicants who have applied is verified. 

Customers who participate in one of these programs will complete an application, show proof of their Participation, 
and be approved before a credit will be applied.

Page 55 of 92



 

 

City of Bend Low-Income Assistance Program 

 

The City of Bend offers the Low-Income Assistance Program to income qualifying residential utility 
customers for discounted service fees. This is a recurring bill discount program that provides a 50% 
reduction to the base fee charge published in the City of Bend Fee Schedule for each qualifying 
residential water service (water, sewer, and stormwater). 

 

The LIAP is available to income eligible residential accountholders with income at or below 60% 
Area Median Income (AMI). Customers must re-qualify for the discount annually. Households 
receiving Oregon Department of Human Services Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
(SNAP) or Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) are considered automatically eligible 
but must still enroll in the program and requalify annually. 

 
TERMS & CONDITIONS 

 Account Type: Only single-family residential accounts are eligible. 

 Account Ownership: Applicant must be the named customer and reside at the dwelling 
identified on the City of Bend utility account. Accounts may be in the name of the 
individual(s) or a family trust where the settlors or testators are residents of the dwelling.  

 Income Guidelines: Household income must be at or below 60% of Area Median Income 
(AMI) by household size. 

 Prequalified: Households receiving Oregon Department of Human Services 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), or Temporary Assistance for Needy 
Families (TANF) benefits are automatically deemed to meet income guidelines. 
Enrollment is not automatic. Customers must follow the established application and/or 
renewal process to enroll in the program.  

 Effective Date: Discounts will be applied to the account at the earliest day possible but 
no later than the first day of the month following approval. Discounts will not be prorated 
and are not retroactive.  

 Duration: Upon qualification, accounts will be enrolled for a 12-month period.  

 Renewal: Customers are required to requalify annually for the program.  

 Qualifying Charges: Discounts may be applied to water, stormwater, and sewer utility 
base charges. Discounts may not be applied to franchise fees, consumption charges, late 
charges, or fees for violations such as meter tampering, obstruction, or bypass. 

Page 56 of 92



 Water Service Shut Off and Collections May Still Apply: Past due accounts will be
subject to water service shut off and collection activities as defined by Bend City Code
14.10.070.

 Temporary Hold on Collections: Customers who believe they are eligible for the Low-
Income Assistance Program but have not applied can contact City of Bend Utility Billing
to receive a temporary hold on collection actions to allow time to complete the application
process. Customers may receive one temporary hold in a 24-month period. The maximum
duration of the hold is ten business days. If the City does not receive notification of
approval within the stated time period, the account will be processed immediately for
collections and water service shut off.

Crisis Voucher Program (begins April 1, 2024) 

The Crisis Voucher Program serves customers going through extenuating personal or financial 
shown to be interfering with their ability to pay their utility bill.  Examples include, but are not 
limited to, death, job loss, divorce, birth/adoption of a child, funeral expenses, or domestic 
violence. This program will become available after Federal and State funding for the Low-Income 
Household Water Assistance (LIHWA) program expires on March 31, 2024.  

Qualifying customers will receive a bill credit equal to the amount owing at the time of application, 
up to a maximum of $200. The maximum amount allowable is $200 per 24-month period. Must 
be a residential customer who receive water services from the City of Bend. Stormwater and 
sewer only customers are not eligible for the Crisis Voucher. 

2023-2024 Utility Assistance Income Eligibility Guidelines 

(60% of State Median Income by Household Size) 

Page 57 of 92



1 

   REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Title: Request for Council Action – Utility Assistance Program 

Preferred Agenda: November 13, 2023 

Submitted By: Kelcey Young, City Manager 

Reviewed By: Kelcey Young, City Manager 

Type of Action: Resolution  Motion _X___   Roll Call ____   Other ____ 

Relevant Code/Policy: Resolutions 26, 27 & 28 for 2023 setting municipal utility rates 
(stormwater, water, and sewer)  

Towards Council Goal: Infrastructure, be an effective and efficient government, 
rejuvenate essential services 

Attachments: Draft Utility Assistance Request Form 

 Purpose of this RCA:  

The purpose of this RCA is to establish a program granting utility assistance to Sweet Home 
residents who qualify as low income according to Linn County HUD thresholds. 

Background/Context: 

The City of Sweet Home approved fee increases for municipal stormwater, water, and sewer 
services in September of 2023 in response to economic factors and infrastructure needs, 
including increasing maintenance and repair costs as well as anticipated capital project 
requirements.  

The Challenge/Problem: 

Nearly 20% of Sweet Home residents are considered to be living in poverty and any rate 
increases, even minimal, have a financial impact on their households. City staff recognizes the 
need to mitigate negative financial impacts to residents while acknowledging that utility rates 
must be such that services can be maintained. 

Stakeholders:  

 Sweet Home Residents – Residents of Sweet Home will be positively impacted by utility
assistance if approved.

 Sweet Home Employers – There is no direct impact to commercial businesses.

 Sweet Home City Council – There is no direct impact to City Council.

 Sweet Home City Staff – Staff will be required to absorb the additional workload of review
and disbursement of assistance; this can be accomplished with current staffing levels.

Issues and Financial Impacts: 

Page 58 of 92



2 

With rising costs and capital projects on the horizon, the storm utility service must remain with 
an appropriate balance of revenue to satisfy the ongoing requirements and maintain a policy-
driven appropriate fund balance. However, allowing for a utility assistance program not to 
exceed a total of $15,000 annually can be offset in the annual budget, including with recent 
reimbursements totaling $525,000 from an Emergency Solutions Grant – Coronavirus Relief 
Phase 2 (ESG-CV2). 

Elements of a Stable Solution: 

A program that will provide utility assistance to Sweet Home’s most vulnerable residents while 
preserving the integrity of its municipal utilities will ensure both a healthy fund balance and 
better economic outcomes for residents. City staff recommends utility assistance of up to 
$10.00 monthly per qualifying household, with total assistance not to exceed $15,000 annually. 
Future rate adjustments as well as future utility assistance availability will be considered in 
relation to capital improvement plans, operational needs, and local socioeconomic factors.  

Options: 

1. Do Nothing – Do not implement a utility assistance program.
2. Approve the request as proposed – This will authorize staff to establish the utility

assistance program with a maximum award of $10.00 per month.
3. Approve the request amending the amount – This will authorize staff to establish the

utility assistance program with a maximum award of $5.00 per month.
4. Amend the request – Approve the utility assistance program with specified changes to

modify the proposed assistance rates, total program cost, application requirements, or
other program elements.

5. Direct Staff to research other options – Direct staff to research other ways to provide
assistance. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends option 2: Adopt the request as currently proposed – Adoption of the request 
allows staff to implement the utility assistance program with relief to residents not to exceed a 
total of $15,000 annually. 

Page 59 of 92



revised November 2023 

Submittal Date:     ____________________  

Applicant Information:  

Service Address:  _______________________________________________________________  

Account Holder Name(s):   ____________________________  Account # __________________ 

Mailing Address:   ______________________________________________________________  

Phone Number:   _____________________  Email:  __________________________________ 

Number of residents in the home: __________________________________ 

Amount per month requested ($10.00 per month maximum): $__________________________ 

Applicant Affidavit 
 Applicant qualifies as low income using the HUD Linn County low income requirements (Click

here to view 2023 HUD income limits.)
 Applicant owns and/or is the authorized account holder of the subject property listed above and

is requesting consideration for Utility Assistance according to current City of Sweet Home policy.
 Applicant is requesting consideration for Utility Assistance.
 Customer must request for assistance moving forward, no retroactive assistance will be

available.
 If approved, the adjustment to the bill will be for no more than the amount requested (a

maximum of $10.00 per month).
 One application per utility account will be allowed per calendar year starting January 1st and will

terminate on December 31st.
 Applicant hereby acknowledges that they must apply annually with all of their current

information.
 Applicant understands and acknowledges that applying does not in any way guarantee that they

will be granted the requested assistance.
 Applicant affirms that the information set forth in this Utility Assistance Request Form is true and

accurate.

Applicant must attach a copy of tax returns, pay stubs, HUD voucher, or other documentation to 
verify that their household’s low income status. 

Applicant Signature:  ______________________________________  Date:  ___________________ 

City of Sweet Home 
3225 Main Street 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5128

www.sweethomeor.gov 

For City Sweet Home Use Only: 

Date Received:  _____________  

Applied to Account (Date):  _____________  Letter sent (Date) ______________ 

Utility Assistance Request Form 

Page 60 of 92



Page 61 of 92



Deeper integration and leveraging of partnerships and funding opportunities

Staff wellness, supports, and development Refocusing and reviving our mission and developing standards of excellence

Succession planning and leadership development Organizational structure that supports innovation and collaboration

“NORTH STARS” THAT GUIDED US TO OUR PRIORITIES BELOW

2023 - 2026

STRATEGIC VISION MAP 

C O N T I N U O U S
I M P R O V E M E N T

Establishing a culture and
standards of excellence to
elevate the CSC experience
and deliver our mission from
the inside out.

T R A I N I N G  &
S T A N D A R D S

Cultivating an environment
of professional development
and growth to invest in our
team members and
increase impact.

S A F E T Y  &
W E L L N E S S

Refocusing and elevating
practices and policies to
make CSC safe, inclusive,
and equitable today and in
the future.

P A R T N E R S H I P S  &
C O M M U N I T Y

Finding innovative and
collaborative ways to
holistically serve and uplift
our region with a network
of community partners.

I N T E N T I O N A L I T Y  &  I N N O V A T I O N
This theme was selected to support and further the incredible growth we experienced the last few years. Thanks to the entire
CSC team, we have developed new programs and services, and served more clients than ever in our history. Now, it’s time

to refocus internally and build our capacity back up to sustain that growth and prepare for the innovation to come!

Page 62 of 92



ABUSE 

My Sister’s Place 
    Toll free    1-800-841-8325
Services to Children & Families 
    Lincoln Co     541-265-8557

ALCOHOL & DRUG ABUSE 

Alcohol & Drug Hotline 
    Toll free    1-800-662-4357
Alcoholics Anonymous  
    Lincoln Co 541-265-1953

BIRTH CONTROL & FAMILY 
PLANNING 

Birthright     541-265-2404
Lincoln Co. Health 541-265-4112

CHILD CARE 

Family Connections 
    Toll free 1-800-845-1363

CLOTHING 

Jonah’s Whale     541-265-8569
Salvation Army 541-265-6814

EMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE 

Community Services Consortium 
    Newport                    541-265-8505
Oregon Employment Office 
    Newport 541-265-8891
    North County     541-994-6992
Vocational Rehab 541-265-7843

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Dept. of Human Services (DHS) 
   Newport/Linc. City     541-265-2248
Disability Services 
   Toll free     1-800-354-1095
Salvation Army     541-265-6814
Senior Services 1-800-282-6194

FOOD 

Elderly Nutrition        1-800-638-0510
Food Stamps 541-265-2248
Gleaning Groups    541-752-1010
Lincoln Co. Food Share 265-8578
Meals on Wheels 
    Newport 541-574-0669
    Lincoln City     541-994-7731
Senior Activity Center   265-9617
Senior Services        1-800-282-6194

GAMBLING ADDICTION 

Toll free 1-877-695-4648
www.1877mylimit.org 

HISPANIC INTERPRETERS 

Centro de Ayuda 541-265-6216
    Lincoln City     541-994-0692

HOUSING ASSIST. / SHELTER 

Community Services Consortium 
     Newport                   541-574-2280
Housing Authority     541-265-5326
Salvation Army     541-265-6814
Samaritan House Shelter 
     Newport 541-574-8898

INFORMATION AND REFERRAL 

Centro de Ayuda 541-265-6216
Salvation Army     541-265-6814

LEGAL ASSISTANCE 

Legal Aid 541-265-5305
Tel Law 1-800-452-4776

MEDICAL / DENTAL / COUNSELING 
ASSIST. AND SEXUALLY 
TRANSMITTED DISEASES 

Lincoln Co. Health       541-265-4112
Lincoln Co. Mental Health 
     Newport                  541-265-4179
Salvation Army            541-265-6814
      (Dental extractions only) 

SENIOR & DISABLED SERVICES 

Senior Services 1-800-282-6194
Social Security      1-800-772-1213

TRANSPORTATION 
Lincoln Co. Transit / Dial-A-Ride 
    Newport                  541-265-4900
Valley Retriever 541-265-2253

UTILITY ASSISTANCE 
Community Services Consortium 
        Newport              541-265-3293
Salvation Army 541-265-6814
Phone Assist       1-800-848-4442

Published by CSC’s Housing & 
Energy Services Dept. 

   120 NE Avery St. 

 Newport, OR 97365 

(541) 265-8505

 Lincoln County 

   HELP CARD 

Page 63 of 92

http://www.1877mylimit.org/


ASSISTING AGENCIES FOR 
LINCOLN COUNTY 

(Phone numbers on back page) 

Revised 8/30/12

A
b
u
s
e
 

A
lc

o
h
o
l 
&

 D
ru

g
 

A
b
u
s
e
 

B
ir
th

 C
o
n

tr
o
l 
&

 
F

a
m

ily
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

C
h
ild

 C
a
re

 

C
lo

th
in

g
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

F
o
o
d

 

F
o
o
d
 s

ta
m

p
s
 

G
a
m

b
lin

g
 A

d
d
ic

t 

H
is

p
a
n
ic

 
In

te
rp

re
te

rs
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 /
 S

h
e
lt
e
r 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 &

 
R

e
fe

rr
a
l 

L
e
g
a

l 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

M
e

d
ic

a
l 
/ 
D

e
n
ta

l 
/ 
  
  

C
o
u
n
s
e
lin

g
 A

s
s
is

t.
 

S
e
n
io

r 
&

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e
x
u
a
lly

 T
ra

n
s
m

it
 

D
is

e
a
s
e
s
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n

 

U
ti
lit

y
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

Alcohol & Drug Hotline  X 

Alcoholics Anonymous  X 

Birthright X 

Centro de Ayuda X X 

Community Services Consortium  X X X 

DHS Self-Sufficiency Program  X X 

Disability Services  X 

Elderly Nutrition  X 

Family Connections  X 

Gleaning Groups  X 

Housing Authority  X 

Jonah’s Whale  X 

Legal Aid X 

Lincoln County Food Share  X 

Lincoln County Heath Dept X X X 

Lincoln County Mental Health X 

Lincoln County Transit/Dial-a-ride  X 

Meals on Wheels  X 

My Sister’s Place  X 

Oregon Employment Office X 

Oregon Problem Gambling X 

Oregon Telephone Assistance X 

Salvation Army X X X X X X 

Samaritan House Shelter  X 

Senior Activity Center  X 

Senior Services  X X 

Services to Children & Families  X 

Social Security Administration X 

Tel Law  X 

Valley Retriever  X 

Vocational Rehabilitation  X 

Page 64 of 92



TO:  Depoe Bay City Council 

FROM:  Kim Wollenburg, City Recorder 

DATE:  January 31, 2024, for February 6, 2024, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT:  Public Meetings Law Update – HB 2805 

Action Requested: None. Information only. 

Discussion: Recently, staff attended a workshop regarding House Bill 2805 that was 
passed during previous legislative session. This HB relates to public meetings law 
and creates new provisions as well as amends the ORS. While the entire bill is 
attached, the following are relevant provisions for the Council and other City 
commissions and committees. 

The HB addresses definitions related to “convening” and “decision.” This is 
important because convening now includes using email and other electronic 
communications that can result in a serial meeting. In addition, the definition 
addresses an “intermediary” such as City staff to communicate in a way that 
circumvents the intent of transparency of the government body decisions. 
Currently, this isn’t an issue in Depoe Bay but is something to be aware of. 

Further, the definition of “deliberation” was added to clarify that of a discussion or 
communication that is part of a decision-making process. The focus is on the 
decision-making process. If a discussion or communication can be used in a 
decision-making process, then it must be noticed. Currently, this isn’t an issue in 
Depoe Bay but is something to be aware of when having discussions or work 
sessions. 

In addition to the changes noted above, the Oregon Government Ethics 
Commission (OGEC) now has the authority to investigate complaints and create 
training on ALL areas of public meetings law instead of only executive meetings. 
They can still only provide advice on executive meetings but OGEC believes that 
will change under the new legislative session. 

The process by which a complaint is handled is expanded. Complaints have to be 
addressed at the City level before the OGEC will handle the complaint. There is a 
detailed process for the City to follow. 

A very important addition to the complaint process is that if an investigation results 
in a civil penalty issued by the OGEC for violation of the public meetings law, it 
becomes a personal liability of each member of the governing body and may not 
be paid for or indemnified by the City.  

Finally, if a City budget is $1,000,000 or above, all members of the Council and 
members of City commissions and committees must have public meetings 
training once per term even if they have multiple terms or join another 
committee or commission. 

Page 65 of 92



City Council Regular Meeting Page 2 

This program will begin late spring/early summer as they are still developing the 
requirements. While the City could create our own OGEC approved training, it 
makes sense to have members attend OGEC training which will be in the form 
of: 

 Live webinars
 Customized in-person
 Customized online

While members of the Council, committees, and commissions have a responsibility 
to attend the training and should track their attendance, staff will put together a 
tracking mechanism for this to ensure compliance. 

Budget Impact: Time spent by staff to coordinate and track public meetings law 
training compliance. 

Recommendation: None. 

Sample Motion(s): None. 

Attachment(s): 
 HB 2805

Page 66 of 92



82nd OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY--2023 Regular Session

Enrolled

House Bill 2805
Sponsored by Representatives SOSA, NERON, MORGAN (Presession filed.)

CHAPTER .................................................

AN ACT

Relating to public meetings; creating new provisions; amending ORS 192.610, 192.680, 192.685,

192.690, 244.255, 244.260, 244.270, 244.290 and 244.350; repealing section 1, chapter 68, Oregon

Laws 2023 (Enrolled Senate Bill 207); and prescribing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

PUBLIC MEETINGS

(Scope of public meetings law)

SECTION 1. ORS 192.610 is amended to read:

192.610. As used in ORS 192.610 to 192.690:

(1) “Convening” means:

(a) Gathering in a physical location;

(b) Using electronic, video or telephonic technology to be able to communicate

contemporaneously among participants;

(c) Using serial electronic written communication among participants; or

(d) Using an intermediary to communicate among participants.

[(1)] (2) “Decision” means any determination, action, vote or final disposition upon a motion,

proposal, resolution, order, ordinance or measure on which a vote of a governing body is required,

at any meeting at which a quorum is present.

(3) “Deliberation” means discussion or communication that is part of a decision-making

process.

[(2)] (4) “Executive session” means any meeting or part of a meeting of a governing body which

is closed to certain persons for deliberation on certain matters.

[(3)] (5) “Governing body” means the members of any public body which consists of two or more

members, with the authority to make decisions for or recommendations to a public body on policy

or administration.

[(4)] (6) “Public body” means the state, any regional council, county, city or district, or any

municipal or public corporation, or any board, department, commission, council, bureau, committee

or subcommittee or advisory group or any other agency thereof.

[(5)] (7)(a) “Meeting” means the convening of a governing body of a public body for which a

quorum is required in order to make a decision or to deliberate toward a decision on any matter.

(b) “Meeting” does not include any on-site inspection of any project or program[. “Meeting” also

does not include] or the attendance of members of a governing body at any national, regional or

state association to which the public body or the members belong.

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 1

Page 67 of 92

kwollenb
Highlight

kwollenb
Highlight

kwollenb
Highlight

kwollenb
Highlight



SECTION 2. ORS 192.690 is amended to read:

192.690. (1) ORS 192.610 to 192.690 do not apply to any of the following:

(a) [the] Deliberations of the Psychiatric Security Review Board[,] or the State Board of Parole

and Post-Prison Supervision[,].

(b) Deliberations of state agencies conducting hearings on contested cases in accordance with

the provisions of ORS chapter 183[,].

(c) Deliberations of [The review by] the Workers’ Compensation Board or the Employment

Appeals Board of similar hearings on contested cases[,].

(d) Meetings of the state lawyers assistance committee operating under the provisions of ORS

9.568[,].

(e) Meetings of the personal and practice management assistance committees operating under

the provisions of ORS 9.568[,].

(f) Meetings of [the] county child abuse multidisciplinary teams required to review child abuse

cases in accordance with the provisions of ORS 418.747[,].

(g) Meetings of [the] child fatality review teams required to review child fatalities in accord-

ance with the provisions of ORS 418.785[,].

(h) Meetings of [the] peer review committees in accordance with the provisions of ORS

441.055[,].

(i) Mediation conducted under ORS 36.252 to 36.268[,].

(j) Any judicial proceeding[,].

(k) Meetings of the Oregon Health and Science University Board of Directors or its designated

committee regarding candidates for the position of president of the university or regarding sensitive

business, financial or commercial matters of the university not customarily provided to competitors

related to financings, mergers, acquisitions or joint ventures or related to the sale or other dispo-

sition of, or substantial change in use of, significant real or personal property, or related to health

system strategies[,].

(L) [or to] Oregon Health and Science University faculty or staff committee meetings.

(m) Communications between or among members of a governing body that are:

(A) Purely factual or educational in nature and that convey no deliberation or decision

on any matter that might reasonably come before the governing body;

(B) Not related to any matter that, at any time, could reasonably be foreseen to come

before the governing body for deliberation and decision; or

(C) Nonsubstantive in nature, such as communication relating to scheduling, leaves of

absence and other similar matters.

(2) Because of the grave risk to public health and safety that would be posed by misappropri-

ation or misapplication of information considered during such review and approval, ORS 192.610 to

192.690 shall not apply to review and approval of security programs by the Energy Facility Siting

Council pursuant to ORS 469.530.

(Training on public meetings law)

SECTION 3. (1)(a) The Oregon Government Ethics Commission shall annually prepare

training on the requirements of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 and best practices to enhance com-

pliance with those requirements. The commission may delegate the preparation and presen-

tation of trainings to another organization, except that the commission must approve the

content of training prepared by another organization prior to presentation of the training.

(b) At the discretion of the commission, trainings prepared under this section may be

presented in live sessions or be made available for viewing online. Training sessions may be

presented to multiple governing bodies at any one time and may be presented in a prere-

corded format.

(2)(a) Every member of a governing body of a public body with total expenditures for a

fiscal year of $1 million or more shall attend or view training prepared under this section

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 2

Page 68 of 92

kwollenb
Highlight

kwollenb
Highlight



at least once during the member’s term of office and shall verify the member’s attendance

using the method prescribed by the commission.

(b) A member of a governing body who, under paragraph (a) of this subsection, is not

required to attend training is nevertheless encouraged to attend training given under this

section.

(3) The commission shall, at least once every five years, adjust the expenditure threshold

for mandatory training described in subsection (2)(a) of this section to account for changes

in inflation and shall by rule establish a new threshold, rounded to the nearest $100,000, for

mandatory training attendance under this section.

(4) This section does not apply to governing bodies of state government, as defined in

ORS 174.111.

SECTION 4. Section 3 of this 2023 Act becomes operative on January 1, 2024.

(Expansion of Oregon Government Ethics Commission

oversight of public meetings law)

SECTION 5. (1) A person who believes that a governing body has acted in violation of

ORS 192.610 to 192.690 may, within 30 days of the alleged violation, file a written grievance

with the public body whose governing body is alleged to have violated ORS 192.610 to 192.690,

setting forth the specific facts and circumstances that the person asserts amounted to a

violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690. The grievance must state the identity of the person filing

the grievance and any other information required by the Oregon Government Ethics Com-

mission by rule.

(2) A public body receiving a written grievance filed under this section shall, within 21

days of the receipt of the grievance, provide a written response to the person:

(a) Acknowledging receipt of the grievance; and

(b)(A) Denying that the facts and circumstances as set forth in the grievance accurately

reflect the conduct of the governing body and setting forth the facts and circumstances as

determined by the public body and the reasons why those facts and circumstances do not

amount to a violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690;

(B) Admitting that the facts and circumstances as set forth in the grievance accurately

reflect the conduct of the governing body but denying that those facts and circumstances

amount to a violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690; or

(C) Admitting that the conduct of the governing body amounted to a violation of ORS

192.610 to 192.690 and setting forth the steps the governing body will take to cure the vio-

lation, including but not limited to:

(i) Rescinding the decision taken by the governing body in violation of ORS 192.610 to

192.690; or

(ii) Acknowledging in a properly noticed and conducted public meeting held within 45 days

of the governing body’s original decision that:

(I) The original decision was made in violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690;

(II) Good cause exists for the governing body to not rescind the decision; and

(III) The governing body’s practices will be modified to ensure future violations of ORS

192.610 to 192.690 do not occur.

(3) The public body shall send a copy of the written grievance and the public body’s re-

sponse under this section to the Oregon Government Ethics Commission at the time the

public body responds to the person who filed the grievance.

SECTION 6. ORS 192.685 is amended to read:

192.685. (1) Notwithstanding ORS 192.680, complaints of violations of [ORS 192.660] any pro-

vision of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 alleged to have been committed by public officials may be made

to the Oregon Government Ethics Commission for review and investigation as provided by ORS

244.260 and for possible imposition of civil penalties as provided by ORS 244.350.

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 3

Page 69 of 92

kwollenb
Highlight

kwollenb
Highlight



(2) A complainant may not file a complaint with the commission under this section unless

the complainant has complied with the written grievance procedures described in section 5

of this 2023 Act and:

(a) Has received a response from the public body that denies that a violation of ORS

192.610 to 192.690 occurred;

(b) Has received a response from the public body that admits that a violation of ORS

192.610 to 192.690 occurred that the public body has failed to take adequate steps to cure; or

(c) Has not received a response from the public body within the time prescribed for a

response under section 5 of this 2023 Act.

(3) A complainant shall submit documentation of the complainant’s actions taken under

section 5 of this 2023 Act and the public body’s response as described in subsection (2) of this

section, if any. The commission shall dismiss any complaint filed under this section that does

not satisfy the requirements of subsection (2) of this section.

[(2)] (4) If a complaint satisfies the requirements of subsection (2) of this section, the

commission may interview witnesses, review minutes and other records and [may] obtain and con-

sider any other information pertaining to [executive sessions] meetings of the governing body of a

public body for purposes of determining whether a violation of ORS [192.660] 192.610 to 192.690

occurred. Information related to an executive session conducted for a purpose authorized by ORS

192.660 shall be made available to the Oregon Government Ethics Commission for its investigation

but shall be excluded from public disclosure.

[(3)] (5) If the commission chooses not to pursue a complaint of a violation brought under sub-

section (1) of this section at any time before conclusion of a contested case hearing, the public of-

ficial against whom the complaint was brought may be entitled to reimbursement of reasonable costs

and attorney fees by the public body to which the official’s governing body has authority to make

recommendations or for which the official’s governing body has authority to make decisions.

SECTION 7. ORS 244.260 is amended to read:

244.260. (1)(a) Any person may file with the Oregon Government Ethics Commission a signed

or electronically signed written complaint alleging that there has been a violation of either:

(A) Any provision of this chapter or of any rule adopted by the commission under this chapter.

The complaint shall state the person’s reason for believing that a violation occurred and include any

evidence relating to the alleged violation.

(B) ORS 192.610 to 192.690. The complaint shall state the particulars of meetings of a

governing body that were not in compliance with ORS 192.610 to 192.690 and shall state the

person’s reason for believing that a violation occurred. The person shall include any evidence

relating to the alleged violation with the complaint.

(b) If at any time the commission has reason to believe that there has been a violation of a

provision of this chapter or of a rule adopted by the commission under this chapter, the commission

may proceed under this section on its own motion as if the commission had received a complaint.

(2)(a) Not later than two business days after receiving a complaint under this section, the com-

mission shall notify the person who is the subject of the complaint.

(b) Before approving a motion to proceed under this section without a complaint, the commission

shall provide notice to the person believed to have committed the violation of the time and place

of the hearing at which the motion will be discussed. If the commission decides to proceed on its

own motion, the commission shall give notice to the person not later than two business days after

the motion is approved.

(c) The commission shall give notice of the complaint or motion under paragraph (a) or (b) of

this subsection. The notice must describe the nature of the alleged violation. The notice must in-

clude copies of all materials submitted with a complaint. If the commission will consider a motion

to proceed without a complaint, the notice must provide copies of all materials that the commission

will consider at the hearing on the motion.

(d) Information that the commission considers before approving a motion to proceed on its own

motion under this section and any correspondence regarding the motion or potential violation is

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 4

Page 70 of 92



confidential. The executive director of the commission and the commission members and staff may

not make any public comment or publicly disclose any materials relating to the motion pending the

commission’s approval to proceed. A person who intentionally violates this paragraph is subject to

a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed $1,000. Any person aggrieved as a result of a violation

of this paragraph by the executive director or a member of the commission or its staff may file a

petition in a court of competent jurisdiction in the county in which the petitioner resides in order

to enforce the civil penalty provided in this paragraph.

(3) After the commission receives a complaint or decides to proceed on its own motion, the

executive director of the commission shall undertake action in the Preliminary Review Phase to

determine whether there is cause to undertake an investigation. If the person who is the subject

of the action is a member of the Legislative Assembly, the executive director shall determine

whether the alleged violation involves conduct protected by Article IV, section 9, of the Oregon

Constitution.

(4)(a) The Preliminary Review Phase begins on the date the complaint is filed or the date the

commission decides to proceed on its own motion and ends on the date the executive director com-

pletes the statement of the facts determined during the phase under paragraph (d) of this subsection.

The Preliminary Review Phase may not exceed 60 days unless a complaint is filed under this section

with respect to a person who is a candidate for elective public office, the complaint is filed within

61 days before the date of an election at which the person is a candidate for nomination or election

and a delay is requested in writing by the candidate. If the candidate makes a request under this

paragraph, the Preliminary Review Phase must be completed not later than 60 days after the date

of the election.

(b) During the Preliminary Review Phase, the executive director of the commission may seek,

solicit or otherwise obtain any books, papers, records, memoranda or other additional information,

administer oaths and take depositions necessary to determine whether there is cause to undertake

an investigation or whether the alleged violation involves conduct protected by Article IV, section

9, of the Oregon Constitution.

(c) The Preliminary Review Phase is confidential. The executive director of the commission and

any commission members and staff may acknowledge receipt of a complaint but may not make any

public comment or publicly disclose any materials relating to a case during the Preliminary Review

Phase. A person who intentionally violates this paragraph is subject to a civil penalty in an amount

not to exceed $1,000. Any person aggrieved as a result of a violation of this paragraph by the

executive director or a member of the commission or its staff may file a petition in a court of

competent jurisdiction in the county in which the petitioner resides in order to enforce the civil

penalty provided in this paragraph.

(d)(A) At the end of the Preliminary Review Phase, the executive director of the commission

shall prepare a statement of the facts determined during the phase, including appropriate legal ci-

tations and relevant authorities. Before presentation to the commission, the executive director’s

statement shall be reviewed by legal counsel to the commission.

(B) Following the conclusion of the Preliminary Review Phase, the executive director of the

commission shall attend an executive session of the commission where the executive director shall

present the statement of the facts and summarize the results of the Preliminary Review Phase to the

commission and recommend to the commission whether there is cause to undertake an investigation

or whether the commission should instead dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion.

(C) At the executive session, the commission shall consider the recommendation of the executive

director and make the final determination as to whether there is cause to undertake an investigation

or whether the commission should instead dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion.

(D) All case related materials and proceedings shall be open to the public after the commission

makes a finding of cause to undertake an investigation, dismisses a complaint or rescinds a motion.

(e) The time limit imposed in this subsection and the commission’s inquiry are suspended if a

court has enjoined the executive director or the commission from continuing the inquiry.

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 5

Page 71 of 92



(5)(a) If the commission determines that there is not cause to undertake an investigation or that

the alleged violation of this chapter involves conduct protected by Article IV, section 9, of the

Oregon Constitution, the commission shall dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion and formally

enter the dismissal or rescission in its records. If the commission considers the recommendation of

the executive director in an executive session but the commission does not affirmatively vote to

undertake an investigation, dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion, the nonaction taken by the

commission shall be considered a dismissal of the complaint or a rescission of its motion. The com-

mission shall notify the person who is the subject of action under this section of the dismissal or

rescission. After dismissal or rescission, the commission may not take further action involving the

person unless a new and different complaint is filed or action on the commission’s own motion is

undertaken based on different conduct.

(b) If the commission makes a finding of cause to undertake an investigation, the commission

shall undertake action in the Investigatory Phase. The commission shall notify the person who is the

subject of the investigation, identify the issues to be examined and confine the investigation to those

issues. If the commission finds reason to expand the investigation, the commission shall move to do

so, record in its minutes the issues to be examined before expanding the scope of its investigation

and formally notify the complainant, if any, and the person who is the subject of the investigation

of the expansion and the scope of the investigation.

(6)(a) The Investigatory Phase begins on the date the commission makes a finding of cause to

undertake an investigation and ends on the date the commission dismisses the complaint, rescinds

its own motion, issues a settlement order, moves to commence a contested case proceeding or takes

other action justified by the findings. Except as provided in this subsection, the Investigatory Phase

may not exceed 180 days unless a delay is stipulated to by both the person who is the subject of

action under this section and the commission with the commission reserving a portion of the delay

period to complete its actions.

(b) During the Investigatory Phase, the commission may seek any additional information, ad-

minister oaths, take depositions and issue subpoenas to compel attendance of witnesses and the

production of books, papers, records, memoranda or other information necessary to complete the

investigation. If any person fails to comply with any subpoena issued under this paragraph or re-

fuses to testify on any matters on which the person may be lawfully interrogated, the commission

shall follow the procedure described in ORS 183.440 to compel compliance.

(c) The time limit imposed in this subsection and the commission’s investigation:

(A) May be suspended if there is a pending criminal investigation that relates to the issues

arising out of the underlying facts or conduct at issue in the matter before the commission and the

commission determines that it cannot adequately complete its investigation until the pending crimi-

nal investigation is complete; [or]

(B) May be suspended if a suit is commenced under ORS 192.680 concerning the same

meetings of a governing body that are the subject of the investigation by the commission,

until a final adjudication of the suit has been made; or

[(B)] (C) Are suspended if a court has enjoined the commission from continuing its investigation.

(d) At the end of the Investigatory Phase, the commission shall take action by order. The action

may include:

(A) Dismissal, with or without comment;

(B) Continuation of the investigation for a period not to exceed 30 days for the purpose of ad-

ditional fact-finding;

(C) Moving to a contested case proceeding;

(D) Entering into a negotiated settlement; or

(E) Taking other appropriate action if justified by the findings.

(e) The commission may move to a contested case proceeding if the commission determines that

the information presented to the commission is sufficient to make a preliminary finding of:

(A) A violation of any provision of this chapter or of any rule adopted by the commission under

this chapter; or

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 6

Page 72 of 92



(B) A violation of any provision of ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

(7) A person conducting any inquiry or investigation under this section shall:

(a) Conduct the inquiry or investigation in an impartial and objective manner; and

(b) Provide to the executive director or the commission all favorable and unfavorable informa-

tion the person collects.

(8) The commission shall report the findings of any inquiry or investigation in an impartial

manner. The commission shall report both favorable and unfavorable findings and shall make the

findings available to:

(a) The person who is the subject of the inquiry or investigation;

(b) The appointing authority, if any;

(c) The Attorney General, if the findings relate to a state public official;

(d) The appropriate district attorney, if the findings relate to a local public official; [and]

(e) The Commission on Judicial Fitness and Disability, if the findings relate to a judge; and

(f) The governing body of a public body, if the inquiry or investigation concerns an alleged

violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 and the person who is the subject of the inquiry or in-

vestigation is a member of that governing body.

(9) Hearings conducted under this chapter must be held before an administrative law judge as-

signed from the Office of Administrative Hearings established under ORS 183.605. The procedure

shall be that for a contested case under ORS chapter 183.

(10) The Oregon Government Ethics Commission may not inquire into or investigate any conduct

that occurred more than four years before a complaint is filed or a motion is approved under sub-

section (1) of this section.

(11) This section does not prevent the commission and the person alleged to have violated any

provision of this chapter or any rule adopted by the commission under this chapter from stipulating

to a finding of fact concerning the violation and consenting to an appropriate penalty. The com-

mission shall enter an order based on the stipulation and consent.

(12) At any time during proceedings conducted under this section, the commission may enter

into a negotiated settlement with the person who is the subject of action under this section.

(13) As used in this section:

(a) “Cause” means that there is a substantial, objective basis for believing that an offense or

violation may have been committed and the person who is the subject of an inquiry may have com-

mitted the offense or violation.

(b) “Governing body” has the meaning given that term in ORS 192.610.

[(b)] (c) “Pending” means that a prosecuting attorney is either actively investigating the factual

basis of the alleged criminal conduct, is preparing to seek or is seeking an accusatory instrument,

has obtained an accusatory instrument and is proceeding to trial or is in trial or in the process of

negotiating a plea.

SECTION 7a. If Senate Bill 207 becomes law, section 1, chapter 68, Oregon Laws 2023

(Enrolled Senate Bill 207) (amending ORS 244.260), is repealed and ORS 244.260, as amended

by section 7 of this 2023 Act, is amended to read:

244.260. (1)(a) Any person may file with the Oregon Government Ethics Commission a signed or

electronically signed written complaint alleging that there has been a violation of either:

(A) Any provision of this chapter or of any rule adopted by the commission under this chapter.

The complaint shall state the person’s reason for believing that a violation occurred and include any

evidence relating to the alleged violation.

(B) ORS 192.610 to 192.690. The complaint shall state the particulars of meetings of a governing

body that were not in compliance with ORS 192.610 to 192.690 and shall state the person’s reason

for believing that a violation occurred. The person shall include any evidence relating to the alleged

violation with the complaint.

(b) If at any time the commission has reason to believe that there has been a violation of a

provision of this chapter or ORS 192.660 or [of] a rule adopted by the commission under this chap-

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 7

Page 73 of 92



ter, the commission may proceed under this section on its own motion as if the commission had re-

ceived a complaint.

(2)(a) Not later than two business days after receiving a complaint under this section, the com-

mission shall notify the person who is the subject of the complaint.

(b) Before approving a motion to proceed under this section without a complaint, the commission

shall provide notice to the person believed to have committed the violation of the time and place

of the hearing at which the motion will be discussed. If the commission decides to proceed on its

own motion, the commission shall give notice to the person not later than two business days after

the motion is approved.

(c) The commission shall give notice of the complaint or motion under paragraph (a) or (b) of

this subsection. The notice must describe the nature of the alleged violation. The notice must in-

clude copies of all materials submitted with a complaint. If the commission will consider a motion

to proceed without a complaint, the notice must provide copies of all materials that the commission

will consider at the hearing on the motion.

(d) Information that the commission considers before approving a motion to proceed on its own

motion under this section and any correspondence regarding the motion or potential violation is

confidential. The executive director of the commission and the commission members and staff may

not make any public comment or publicly disclose any materials relating to the motion pending the

commission’s approval to proceed. A person who intentionally violates this paragraph is subject to

a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed $1,000. Any person aggrieved as a result of a violation

of this paragraph by the executive director or a member of the commission or its staff may file a

petition in a court of competent jurisdiction in the county in which the petitioner resides in order

to enforce the civil penalty provided in this paragraph.

(3) After the commission receives a complaint or decides to proceed on its own motion, the

executive director of the commission shall undertake action in the Preliminary Review Phase to

determine whether there is cause to undertake an investigation. If the person who is the subject

of the action is a member of the Legislative Assembly, the executive director shall determine

whether the alleged violation involves conduct protected by Article IV, section 9, of the Oregon

Constitution.

(4)(a) The Preliminary Review Phase begins on the date the complaint is filed or the date the

commission decides to proceed on its own motion and ends on the date the executive director com-

pletes the statement of the facts determined during the phase under paragraph (d) of this subsection.

The Preliminary Review Phase may not exceed 60 days unless a complaint is filed under this section

with respect to a person who is a candidate for elective public office, the complaint is filed within

61 days before the date of an election at which the person is a candidate for nomination or election

and a delay is requested in writing by the candidate. If the candidate makes a request under this

paragraph, the Preliminary Review Phase must be completed not later than 60 days after the date

of the election.

(b) During the Preliminary Review Phase, the executive director of the commission may seek,

solicit or otherwise obtain any books, papers, records, memoranda or other additional information,

administer oaths and take depositions necessary to determine whether there is cause to undertake

an investigation or whether the alleged violation involves conduct protected by Article IV, section

9, of the Oregon Constitution.

(c) The Preliminary Review Phase is confidential. The executive director of the commission and

any commission members and staff may acknowledge receipt of a complaint but may not make any

public comment or publicly disclose any materials relating to a case during the Preliminary Review

Phase. A person who intentionally violates this paragraph is subject to a civil penalty in an amount

not to exceed $1,000. Any person aggrieved as a result of a violation of this paragraph by the

executive director or a member of the commission or its staff may file a petition in a court of

competent jurisdiction in the county in which the petitioner resides in order to enforce the civil

penalty provided in this paragraph.

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 8

Page 74 of 92



(d)(A) At the end of the Preliminary Review Phase, the executive director of the commission

shall prepare a statement of the facts determined during the phase, including appropriate legal ci-

tations and relevant authorities. Before presentation to the commission, the executive director’s

statement shall be reviewed by legal counsel to the commission.

(B) Following the conclusion of the Preliminary Review Phase, the executive director of the

commission shall attend an executive session of the commission where the executive director shall

present the statement of the facts and summarize the results of the Preliminary Review Phase to the

commission and recommend to the commission whether there is cause to undertake an investigation

or whether the commission should instead dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion.

(C) At the executive session, the commission shall consider the recommendation of the executive

director and make the final determination as to whether there is cause to undertake an investigation

or whether the commission should instead dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion.

(D) All case related materials and proceedings shall be open to the public after the commission

makes a finding of cause to undertake an investigation, dismisses a complaint or rescinds a motion.

(e) The time limit imposed in this subsection and the commission’s inquiry are suspended if a

court has enjoined the executive director or the commission from continuing the inquiry.

(5)(a) If the commission determines that there is not cause to undertake an investigation or that

the alleged violation of this chapter involves conduct protected by Article IV, section 9, of the

Oregon Constitution, the commission shall dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion and formally

enter the dismissal or rescission in its records. If the commission considers the recommendation of

the executive director in an executive session but the commission does not affirmatively vote to

undertake an investigation, dismiss the complaint or rescind its motion, the nonaction taken by the

commission shall be considered a dismissal of the complaint or a rescission of its motion. The com-

mission shall notify the person who is the subject of action under this section of the dismissal or

rescission. After dismissal or rescission, the commission may not take further action involving the

person unless a new and different complaint is filed or action on the commission’s own motion is

undertaken based on different conduct.

(b) If the commission makes a finding of cause to undertake an investigation, the commission

shall undertake action in the Investigatory Phase. The commission shall notify the person who is the

subject of the investigation, identify the issues to be examined and confine the investigation to those

issues. If the commission finds reason to expand the investigation, the commission shall move to do

so, record in its minutes the issues to be examined before expanding the scope of its investigation

and formally notify the complainant, if any, and the person who is the subject of the investigation

of the expansion and the scope of the investigation.

(6)(a) The Investigatory Phase begins on the date the commission makes a finding of cause to

undertake an investigation and ends on the date the commission dismisses the complaint, rescinds

its own motion, issues a settlement order, moves to commence a contested case proceeding or takes

other action justified by the findings. Except as provided in this subsection, the Investigatory Phase

may not exceed 180 days unless a delay is stipulated to by both the person who is the subject of

action under this section and the commission with the commission reserving a portion of the delay

period to complete its actions.

(b) During the Investigatory Phase, the commission may seek any additional information, ad-

minister oaths, take depositions and issue subpoenas to compel attendance of witnesses and the

production of books, papers, records, memoranda or other information necessary to complete the

investigation. If any person fails to comply with any subpoena issued under this paragraph or re-

fuses to testify on any matters on which the person may be lawfully interrogated, the commission

shall follow the procedure described in ORS 183.440 to compel compliance.

(c) The time limit imposed in this subsection and the commission’s investigation:

(A) May be suspended if there is a pending criminal investigation that relates to the issues

arising out of the underlying facts or conduct at issue in the matter before the commission and the

commission determines that it cannot adequately complete its investigation until the pending crimi-

nal investigation is complete;

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 9

Page 75 of 92



(B) May be suspended if a suit is commenced under ORS 192.680 concerning the same meetings

of a governing body that are the subject of the investigation by the commission, until a final adju-

dication of the suit has been made; or

(C) Are suspended if a court has enjoined the commission from continuing its investigation.

(d) At the end of the Investigatory Phase, the commission shall take action by order. The action

may include:

(A) Dismissal, with or without comment;

(B) Continuation of the investigation for a period not to exceed 30 days for the purpose of ad-

ditional fact-finding;

(C) Moving to a contested case proceeding;

(D) Entering into a negotiated settlement; or

(E) Taking other appropriate action if justified by the findings.

(e) The commission may move to a contested case proceeding if the commission determines that

the information presented to the commission is sufficient to make a preliminary finding of:

(A) A violation of any provision of this chapter or of any rule adopted by the commission under

this chapter; or

(B) A violation of any provision of ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

(7) A person conducting any inquiry or investigation under this section shall:

(a) Conduct the inquiry or investigation in an impartial and objective manner; and

(b) Provide to the executive director or the commission all favorable and unfavorable informa-

tion the person collects.

(8) The commission shall report the findings of any inquiry or investigation in an impartial

manner. The commission shall report both favorable and unfavorable findings and shall make the

findings available to:

(a) The person who is the subject of the inquiry or investigation;

(b) The appointing authority, if any;

(c) The Attorney General, if the findings relate to a state public official;

(d) The appropriate district attorney, if the findings relate to a local public official;

(e) The Commission on Judicial Fitness and Disability, if the findings relate to a judge; and

(f) The governing body of a public body, if the inquiry or investigation concerns an alleged vi-

olation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 and the person who is the subject of the inquiry or investigation

is a member of that governing body.

(9) Hearings conducted under this chapter must be held before an administrative law judge as-

signed from the Office of Administrative Hearings established under ORS 183.605. The procedure

shall be that for a contested case under ORS chapter 183.

(10) The Oregon Government Ethics Commission may not inquire into or investigate any conduct

that occurred more than four years before a complaint is filed or a motion is approved under sub-

section (1) of this section.

(11) This section does not prevent the commission and the person alleged to have violated any

provision of this chapter or ORS 192.660 or any rule adopted by the commission under this chapter

from stipulating to a finding of fact concerning the violation and consenting to an appropriate pen-

alty. The commission shall enter an order based on the stipulation and consent.

(12) At any time during proceedings conducted under this section, the commission may enter

into a negotiated settlement with the person who is the subject of action under this section.

(13) As used in this section:

(a) “Cause” means that there is a substantial, objective basis for believing that an offense or

violation may have been committed and the person who is the subject of an inquiry may have com-

mitted the offense or violation.

(b) “Governing body” has the meaning given that term in ORS 192.610.

(c) “Pending” means that a prosecuting attorney is either actively investigating the factual basis

of the alleged criminal conduct, is preparing to seek or is seeking an accusatory instrument, has

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 10

Page 76 of 92



obtained an accusatory instrument and is proceeding to trial or is in trial or in the process of ne-

gotiating a plea.

SECTION 7b. If Senate Bill 207 becomes law, the amendments to ORS 244.260 by section

7a of this 2023 Act become operative on January 1, 2024.

SECTION 8. ORS 192.680 is amended to read:

192.680. (1) A decision made by a governing body of a public body in violation of ORS 192.610

to 192.690 shall be voidable. The decision shall not be voided if the governing body of the public

body reinstates the decision while in compliance with ORS 192.610 to 192.690. A decision that is

reinstated is effective from the date of its initial adoption.

(2) Any person affected by a decision of a governing body of a public body may commence a suit

in the circuit court for the county in which the governing body ordinarily meets, for the purpose

of requiring compliance with, or the prevention of violations of ORS 192.610 to 192.690, by members

of the governing body, or to determine the applicability of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 to matters or

decisions of the governing body.

(3) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, if the court finds that the public body made

a decision while in violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690, the court shall void the decision of the

governing body if the court finds that the violation was the result of intentional disregard of the law

or willful misconduct by a quorum of the members of the governing body, unless other equitable

relief is available. The court may order such equitable relief as it deems appropriate in the cir-

cumstances. The court may order payment to a successful plaintiff in a suit brought under this

section of reasonable attorney fees at trial and on appeal, by the governing body, or public body of

which it is a part or to which it reports.

(4) If the court makes a finding that a violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 has occurred under

subsection (2) of this section and that the violation is the result of willful misconduct by any member

or members of the governing body, that member or members shall be jointly and severally liable to

the governing body or the public body of which it is a part for the amount paid by the body under

subsection (3) of this section.

(5) Any suit brought under subsection (2) of this section must be commenced within 60 days

following the date that the decision becomes public record.

(6) The provisions of this section shall be the exclusive remedy for an alleged violation of ORS

192.610 to 192.690, except that this subsection does not apply to proceedings of the Oregon

Government Ethics Commission.

SECTION 9. ORS 244.255 is amended to read:

244.255. (1) The Oregon Government Ethics Commission shall estimate in advance the expenses

that it will incur during a biennium in carrying out the provisions of ORS 171.725 to 171.785, [and]

171.992 and 192.610 to 192.690 and this chapter. The commission shall also determine what per-

centage of the expenses should be borne by the following two groups of public bodies:

(a) Public bodies in state government; and

(b) Local governments, local service districts and special government bodies that are subject to

the Municipal Audit Law.

(2) The commission shall charge each public body for the public body’s share of the expenses

described in subsection (1) of this section for the biennium. The amount to be charged each public

body shall be determined as follows:

(a) The commission shall determine the rate to be charged public bodies in state government.

The same rate shall be applied to each public body described in this paragraph. To determine the

amount of the charge for each public body, the commission shall multiply the rate determined under

this paragraph by the number of public officials serving the public body.

(b) The commission shall set the charge for local governments, local service districts and special

government bodies that are subject to the Municipal Audit Law so that each local government, local

service district or special government body described in this paragraph pays an amount of the total

expenses for the group that bears the same proportion to the total expenses that the amount

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 11

Page 77 of 92



charged to the local government, local service district or special government body for the municipal

audit fee under ORS 297.485 bears to the total amount assessed for the municipal audit fee.

(3) Each public body shall pay to the credit of the commission the charge described in this

section as an administrative expense from funds or appropriations available to the public body in

the same manner as other claims against the public body are paid.

(4) All moneys received by the commission under this section shall be credited to the Oregon

Government Ethics Commission Account established under ORS 244.345.

(5) The commission shall adopt rules specifying the methods for calculating and collecting the

rates and charges described in this section.

(6) As used in this section:

(a) “Local government” and “local service district” have the meanings given those terms in ORS

174.116.

(b) “Public body” has the meaning given that term in ORS 174.109.

(c) “Public official,” notwithstanding ORS 244.020 (15), means any person who, on the date the

commission charges the public body under this section, is serving the public body as an officer or

employee.

(d) “Special government body” has the meaning given that term in ORS 174.117.

(e) “State government” has the meaning given that term in ORS 174.111.

SECTION 10. ORS 244.270 is amended to read:

244.270. (1) If the Oregon Government Ethics Commission finds that an appointed public official

has violated any provision of this chapter or any rule adopted under this chapter, or has violated

any provision of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 with intentional disregard of the law or willful mis-

conduct, the finding is prima facie evidence of unfitness where removal is authorized for cause ei-

ther by law or pursuant to section 6, Article VII (Amended) of the Oregon Constitution.

(2) If the commission finds that a public official has violated any provision of this chapter or

any rule adopted under this chapter, or has violated any provision of ORS 192.610 to 192.690, the

commission shall notify the public body, as defined in ORS 174.109, that the public official serves.

The notice shall describe the violation and any action taken by the commission. The commission

shall provide the notice not later than 10 business days after the date the commission takes final

action against the public official.

SECTION 11. ORS 244.290 is amended to read:

244.290. (1) The Oregon Government Ethics Commission shall:

(a) Prescribe forms for statements required by this chapter and provide the forms to persons

required to file the statements under this chapter or pursuant to a resolution adopted under ORS

244.160.

(b) Develop a filing, coding and cross-indexing system consistent with the purposes of this

chapter.

(c) Prepare and publish reports the commission finds are necessary.

(d) Accept and file any information voluntarily supplied that exceeds the requirements of this

chapter.

(e) Make statements and other information filed with the commission available for public in-

spection and copying during regular office hours, and make copying facilities available at a charge

not to exceed actual cost.

(f) Not later than February 1 of each odd-numbered year, report to the Legislative Assembly any

recommended changes to provisions of ORS 171.725 to 171.785 or this chapter.

(2) The commission shall adopt rules necessary to carry out its duties under ORS 171.725 to

171.785, 171.992[, 192.660 and 192.685] and 192.610 to 192.690 and this chapter, including rules to:

(a) Create a procedure under which items before the commission may be treated under a consent

calendar and voted on as a single item;

(b) Exempt a public official who is otherwise required to file a statement pursuant to ORS

244.050 from filing the statement if the regularity, number and frequency of the meetings and actions

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 12

Page 78 of 92



of the body over which the public official has jurisdiction are so few or infrequent as not to warrant

the public disclosure;

(c) Establish an administrative process whereby a person subpoenaed by the commission may

obtain a protective order;

(d) List criteria and establish a process for the commission to use prosecutorial discretion to

decide whether to proceed with an inquiry or investigation;

(e) Establish a procedure under which the commission shall conduct accuracy audits of a sample

of reports or statements filed with the commission under this chapter or ORS 171.725 to 171.785;

(f) Describe the application of provisions exempting items from the definition of “gift” in ORS

244.020;

(g) Specify when a continuing violation is considered a single violation or a separate and dis-

tinct violation for each day the violation occurs; and

(h) Set criteria for determining the amount of civil penalties that the commission may impose.

(3) The commission may adopt rules that:

(a) Limit the minimum size of, or otherwise establish criteria for or identify, the smaller classes

that qualify under the class exception from the definition of “potential conflict of interest” under

ORS 244.020;

(b) Require the disclosure and reporting of gifts or other compensation made to or received by

a public official or candidate;

(c) Establish criteria for cases in which information relating to notices of actual or potential

conflicts of interest shall, may not or may be provided to the commission under ORS 244.130; or

(d) Allow the commission to accept the filing of a statement containing less than all of the in-

formation required under ORS 244.060 and 244.070 if the public official or candidate certifies on the

statement that the information contained on the statement previously filed is unchanged or certifies

only as to any changed material.

(4) Not less frequently than once each calendar year, the commission shall:

(a) Consider adoption of rules the commission deems necessary to implement or interpret pro-

visions of this chapter relating to issues the commission determines are of general interest to public

officials or candidates or that are addressed by the commission or by commission staff on a recur-

ring basis; and

(b) Review rules previously adopted by the commission to determine whether the rules have

continuing applicability or whether the rules should be amended or repealed.

(5) The commission shall adopt by rule an electronic filing system under which statements re-

quired to be filed under ORS 244.050 and 244.217 must be filed, without a fee, with the commission

in an electronic format.

(6) The commission shall make available in a searchable format for review by the public using

the Internet:

(a) Statements filed under ORS 244.050 and 244.217;

(b) Advisory opinions issued by the commission or the executive director of the commission;

(c) Findings issued by the commission under ORS 244.260 in instances where the commission

determines that there has been a violation of a provision of this chapter or of any rule adopted by

the commission under this chapter. Nothing in this paragraph requires the commission to make

publicly available materials that are otherwise exempt from public disclosure or that are required

to be kept confidential by the commission; and

(d) Lobbyist registration statements and revisions and updates to lobbyist registration state-

ments filed under ORS 171.740. The information required under this paragraph must be available in

a searchable format for review by the public using the Internet not later than one calendar day after

the lobbyist files the information with the commission.

SECTION 12. ORS 244.350 is amended to read:

244.350. (1) The Oregon Government Ethics Commission may impose civil penalties not to ex-

ceed:

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 13

Page 79 of 92



(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) of this subsection, $5,000 for violation of

any provision of this chapter or any resolution adopted under ORS 244.160.

(b) $25,000 for violation of ORS 244.045.

(c) $10,000 for willfully violating ORS 244.040.

(d) Two times the amount of the penalty provision for violating a nondisclosure agreement that

is contained within each nondisclosure agreement entered into in violation of ORS 244.049.

(2)(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection, the commission may impose civil

penalties not to exceed $1,000 for violation of any provision of ORS [192.660] 192.610 to 192.690.

(b) A civil penalty may not be imposed under this subsection if the violation occurred as a result

of the governing body of the public body acting upon the advice of the public body’s counsel.

(3) The commission may impose civil penalties not to exceed $250 for violation of ORS 293.708.

A civil penalty imposed under this subsection is in addition to and not in lieu of a civil penalty that

may be imposed under subsection (1) of this section.

(4)(a) The commission may impose civil penalties on a person who fails to file the statement

required under ORS 244.050 or 244.217. In enforcing this subsection, the commission is not required

to follow the procedures in ORS 244.260 before finding that a violation of ORS 244.050 or 244.217

has occurred.

(b) Failure to file the required statement in timely fashion is prima facie evidence of a violation

of ORS 244.050 or 244.217.

(c) The commission may impose a civil penalty of $10 for each of the first 14 days the statement

is late beyond the date set by law, or by the commission under ORS 244.050, and $50 for each day

thereafter. The maximum penalty that may be imposed under this subsection is $5,000.

(5) In lieu of or in conjunction with finding a violation of law or any resolution or imposing a

civil penalty under this section, the commission may issue a written letter of reprimand, explanation

or education.

(6)(a) A civil penalty imposed under this section for a violation of ORS 192.610 to 192.690

is a personal liability of each member of the governing body on whom the penalty is imposed

and may not be paid for or indemnified by the governing body or public body that the mem-

ber is associated with.

(b) As used in this subsection, “governing body” and “public body” have the meanings

given those terms in ORS 192.610.

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 13. Sections 3 and 5 of this 2023 Act and ORS 192.695 are added to and made a

part of ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

SECTION 14. Notwithstanding any other law limiting expenditures, the limitation on ex-

penditures established by section 1, chapter 61, Oregon Laws 2023 (Enrolled House Bill 5021),

for the biennium beginning July 1, 2023, as the maximum limit for payment of expenses from

fees, moneys or other revenues, including Miscellaneous Receipts and reimbursements from

federal service agreements, but excluding lottery funds and federal funds not described in

section 1, chapter 61, Oregon Laws 2023 (Enrolled House Bill 5021), collected or received by

the Oregon Government Ethics Commission, is increased by $1,365,307.

SECTION 15. The unit captions used in this 2023 Act are provided only for the conven-

ience of the reader and do not become part of the statutory law of this state or express any

legislative intent in the enactment of this 2023 Act.

EFFECTIVE DATE

SECTION 16. This 2023 Act takes effect on the 91st day after the date on which the 2023

regular session of the Eighty-second Legislative Assembly adjourns sine die.

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 14

Page 80 of 92

kwollenb
Highlight



Passed by House June 8, 2023

Repassed by House June 25, 2023

..................................................................................

Timothy G. Sekerak, Chief Clerk of House

..................................................................................

Dan Rayfield, Speaker of House

Passed by Senate June 24, 2023

..................................................................................

Rob Wagner, President of Senate

Received by Governor:

........................M.,........................................................., 2023

Approved:

........................M.,........................................................., 2023

..................................................................................

Tina Kotek, Governor

Filed in Office of Secretary of State:

........................M.,........................................................., 2023

..................................................................................

Secretary of State

Enrolled House Bill 2805 (HB 2805-B) Page 15

Page 81 of 92



TO:  Depoe Bay City Council 

FROM:  Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder and Brady Weidner, Public Works 
 Director 

DATE:  February 6, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting 

SUBJECT:  City-Wide Projects Memo 

Update on Projects:  
There are many tasks currently in progress within the City in addition to the 
daily/regular tasks of customer service and other duties.  

Regularly included with this update is a separate document from the City 
Engineer regarding projects they are working on and the status. Additional 
updates will be provided below as needed. 

Administration 
Events: 2nd Annual Special Olympics Polar Plunge – March 23, 2024 

Code Enforcement: Waiting for street signs to be installed to address issues 
around town. 

Grants: Per the concurrence of the Council, the grant for the land acquisition was 
withdrawn.  

Technology, Audio & Security Upgrade Project: Equipment received. 
Implementation begins on February 15. 

Winter Ice Storm: A new generator was purchased through the auction site for 
about $3,000 - $4,000 less than a new one would have cost. Staff is getting quotes 
for new transfer switches down at the Community Hall.  

Financial 
Audit: Isler received the termination letter and notified the City last Wednesday. 
That same day, he provided a draft of the audit. The draft is under review by an 
independent auditor of the City to ensure we have the proper adjustments that 
need to be made. The RFQ is posting on Wednesday February 7. 

Budget: No new action at this time. 

Harbor 
Harbor Restoration Project: Council approved the award of the contract to 
Advanced American on January 10. The protest period for the rebid is complete 
with no protest filed. Staff is working with Advanced American to get the contract 
signed and a Notice to Proceed sent within the next week. 

Dock Leases: Harbor Commission is making a recommendation to the Council to 
allow them the ability to work with appraisers and other professionals to try and 
determine how much to charge. 

Page 82 of 92



Depoe Bay City Council Page 2 
February 6, 2024 

General: Staff met with the local sea grant agent regarding the pump and the 
suction issue to troubleshoot the issue with the manufacturer. Signs were updated 
and replaced, including the “no wake” sign that was relocated to a better 
location to prevent damage from boats. Crew have been painting the fish 
cleaning station and restrooms at the boat launch side of the harbor. A plug for a 
generator at the fuel bunker was repaired. 

Water 
Collins Water Line Replacement: Staff continue researching for better price quote 
for material, particularly PVC pipe and fittings. 

Foundation/Filter Replacement: No new updates. 

Potable / Culinary Wells Project: The last step is testing the water, which has to be 
done on a Wednesday. Oregon Health Authority said we have until spring 2024 to 
test. 

General: Worked with various contractors to address some SCADA connectivity 
problems resulting from the loss of power. Nothing serious – mostly firming up the 
connections. The View of the Bay lift station keeps kicking off. A contractor is 
scheduled for Friday February 2 to address. 

Wastewater 
Catwalk Repairs: See City Engineer meeting minutes for status. 

General: Crew had to replace two pumps for wear and tear failure. InI work done 
to address grease build up in the sewer main lines in preparation for the video 
work to inspect areas of concern in collection system. Working with the 
Department of State Lands regarding their concerns about the location of the 
outfall on South Point and whether an easement is needed. Requested a review 
from the City Engineer to make sure that this new requirement is applicable. 

Streets 
Lingcod Parking Lot: Crew is working on installing the landscape fabric and 
fencing and ordering the rock for the erosion control plan. 

Heiberg – The street runoff from the stormwater is going through like funnel into a 
neighboring property. Crew will work with the City Engineer to design a berm. 

Street Overlays (Briscoe, Crescent, Floral) – Received a quote for under the 
budgeted amount. The contractor will begin the work as soon as weather 
permitted. 

General: The crew has been doing pot holing and minor repairs to gravel and 
putting in cold mix. Hot mix won’t be available to the spring to do major works.  

Parks 
Big Tire Park: Update provided earlier in the meeting. 

Page 83 of 92



Depoe Bay City Council Page 3 
February 6, 2024 

Community Hall Cabinet Replacement: New cabinets ordered. 

North Bridge Replacement: Project was on hold pending recreational immunity 
discussions with insurance provider. City Engineer asked to move this along as a 
higher priority. 

Winchell Lookout: Contractor is still scheduled for after the first of the year. 

Recreational Immunity: Parks Commission will begin their review of the parks in 
February. 

General: Continuing to clean up storm debris in the parks and general 
maintenance. 

Page 84 of 92



City of Depoe Bay – Engineering Services 

AKS Job# 10004 

Meeting Notes 

Date: 1/31/2024 

Attendees: Kim/Brady/Paul - City; Deza/John - AKS 

1. General Engineering Tasks
a. Delta Operations scope of work – AKS recommends approval – City is proceeding with the

work. Initial soil borings have been completed.
2. Plan Review

a. Lane Street – Plans submitted to ODOT 1/31/2024 - Kim to follow-up with Developer
b. Shell Ave – Update from developer? - City installed a 2” meter. Kim to follow-up regarding the

right-of-way dedication.
c. The Hills/Whale Watch – Received additional documents from developer/engineer on

1/16/24. AKS reviewing submittals, with priority on Tank review. Send Kim the email with the
file exchange from the developer

d. Big Whale Cove – Waiting on developer/engineer response. Per Brady, developer/engineer is
looking at approvals for crossing of federal land

e. 565 NE Stanley (#4-GEO-PC-23) - No additional response needed from AKS.
3. Bay Street Sidewalk - Task order submitted 1/17/2024 - Survey scheduled for week of March 4th
4. WWTP Catwalk – Task order submitted 1/17/2024 - Survey scheduled for week of March 4th
5. Timber Bridge – AKS move up priority list.
6. HWY 101 Bridge water pipe hangers – Low priority
7. Coho Parking Lot – AKS will evaluate concurrent with Bay Street Sidewalk project
8. Rocky Creek Intake – On hold until further notice
9. Eastridge – Update from City attorney – Kim will follow-up.
10. Bensell Ave/Vista Terrace – AKS coordinating scope of work with Geotech for initial evaluation.
11. GIS – AKS preparing memo to summarize cost so City can budget in next FY. - AKS finalize
12. Lead Copper Rule – AKS findings and memo.  AKS to send memo and inventory spreadsheet for Kim to

complete.
13. Design Standards – Long term item
14. Impound Property PLA – Task Order submitted 1/17/2024 - Survey scheduled for week of March 4th
15. Edgewater PS – Brady to send pictures – Status? Brady wants a structure over the pump house (tuff

shed).
16. DEQ Outfalls – Outfall installed in 1973. DSL flagged the outfall for being below OHWL. AKS to look

into and report back.
17. Pump Station – Little Whale Cove – Does this system have capacity to accept additional flows? Brady

doesn’t like the pumps in this system. Summer 2024 look at this pump station for capacity and
improvements. System installed in 1970s.

Page 85 of 92



Date: February 6, 2024 

To: Depoe Bay City Council 

From: Kit Fox, AICP, City Planner 

Subject: Complaint regarding Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna 

On January 9, 2024, Staff received a complaint from a resident (via email) regarding the 
T-Mobile antennae attached to the Travelodge at 50 NE Bechill Street. The complainant
alleges that the antennae at the southwesterly corner of the motel building encroach
upon his property, which abuts the motel to the south. The complainant provided photos
and exhibits depicting the alleged encroachment (attached).

The subject property is identified as Map and Tax Lots 
#09-11-05-CD-02000 through -02400, and is improved 
with a 3-story motel that was built in about 1998.  It is 
zoned C-1 and is surrounded by other residential and 
commercial structures in the C-1 zoning district. The 
property owner is listed as Crown Pacifiq Motel, LLC 
of Depoe Bay, OR. The existing antennae were 
approved through a conditional use permit (Case 
File #1-CU-PC-21) issued to T-Mobile by the Planning 
Commission in April 2021. 

The photograph at left depicts the existing 
antennae at the southwesterly corner of the 
Travelodge building, as observed by Staff on 
January 16, 2024. The complainant provided 
additional photos and a 1989 property line 
survey. Although the complainant’s photos 
suggest that the antennae may extend beyond 
the property line, they do not conclusively prove 
this. Furthermore, the alleged encroachment of 
the antennae may be a form of private trespass, 

for which a complainant may have a right to civil action against the property owner 
and/or T-Mobile, but they are not a violation of City code. Therefore, Staff sent the 
attached letter to the complainant on January 23, 2024. 

Attachments 

• Complaint
• Letter to complainant

Page 86 of 92



CITY OF DEPOE BAY 

P.O. BOX8 

DEPOE BAY, OR 97341 

541-765-2361

COMPLAINT FORM 

Complaint (Include brief summary of details, attach additional 
information if needed): 

Location of Complaint __________________ _ 

INFORMATION OF PERSON FILING COMPLAINT 
Name (required)_TI_�---�....._Af'f/ _____________ _
Street Address 

----------------------

Mailing Address _________ _ 
Home Phone __ Work Phone ________ _ 

Signature ___ n_�---�-=--Af'f/ _____ Date _______ _

For Office Use Only 
Routed To ____ Date ___ _ 
Date Report Filed with City Council ___ _ 

"This institution is an equal opportunity provider" 

Page 87 of 92



Thomas and Geralyn Regan 

Page 1 of 2 

Crown Pacifiq Motel, LLC August 23, 2023 

Subject:  Antenna Equipment Encroachment into Lot 5 (09-11-05-CD-02700) 

CC19: Countrywide Communica on Tower 

Lease Only Antenna Facility, M-6368, Depoe Bay, Block 10, Lot 6 (09-11-05-CD-02400-L1) 

Reference:  Crown Pacifiq Motel, LLC/Voice Stream Lease, Site #PO-3828-D 

Countrywide Communica on Tower Site ID R517393 

Survey Lots 4 & 5 of Block 10 of Depoe Bay, Sec 5, T9S, R11W, WM, Lincoln County 

It has recently come to our a en on that the antenna equipment mounted to the south exterior wall of the 

referenced property, currently dba Travelodge Motel, encroaches into the subject parcel.  The antenna and 

appurtenant equipment extend over the lot line from Lot 6 into Lot 5.  The antenna equipment and encroachment 

are depicted in the photos below: 

View Looking West along North Wall of House (Lot 5) 

View Looking West along North Wall of House (Lot 5) 

View Looking West along North Wall of House (Lot 5) 

View of Antenna Equipment on South Wall of Motel (Lot 6) 

Page 88 of 92



Antenna Encroachment
August 23, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

Property Corner(s), SE Lot 5, NE Lot 6; Lot 5 House on Right 

Signage on Fence Surrounding Support Equipment (Lot 6) 

View of Antenna Equipment on South Wall of Motel (Lot 6), 

House (Lot 5) on Right 

The proximity of the antenna(s) to the house presents a poten al health hazard to house occupants and the 

antenna(s) nega vely affect views from the residence.  Encroachment also requires disclosure in the event the 

property is sold.  In total, the installa on nega vely affects the property and property value.   

You are hereby requested to remove or relocate the por on of antenna equipment encroaching into Lot 5 and 

contain it on the leased parcel/motel property.  Please contact us if you have ques ons or desire to discuss.   

Sincerely, 

Thomas Regan 

Property Owner, Lot 5 

A achments 

Street Map 

Property Survey 

Page 89 of 92



NE Williams Street

50 ft

Printed on 7 / 29 / 2023

Legend

Lincoln County Government Use only. Use for any other purpose is entirely at the risk of the user. This 
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, engineering, 
or surveying purposes. Users should review the primary information sources to ascertain their usability. Page 90 of 92

regan
Distance Measurement
0 mi

regan
Rectangle

regan
Callout
Area of Encroachment

regan
Callout
Crown Pacifiq/Travelodge Motel Site

regan
Callout
Regan Property



-- C.S. # I .2, t, ? P
S�c. '=>, , C!) � , 1< \\ WW\V"\ l)t-\COl-N COUN'""t Y FILED 1 Oe,,-1-. I '1 Bf

LINCOLN COUNTY SURVEYOR 

0
0
'1 /\-
�., 
a, 

0 
0 

__,_,_.., __ _ 
REGlSTERE[l 

PROI:,"ESSH,ONAL 
LAND 

OREGON 
SEPTEMBER 23, 1977 

JAMES A. PAETH 
\.. 1285 _.J 

LOV\Cvt..'t..t 
� 0.\\ \IA 

13\...()C. '"'® 
rs

o
�

� 

IiS/&11
\R. 

--30-

4f 
"Bee.�,\\ 

� I 
S \vee � �D1 5�'\ 

�"';>/81 \l'c.. ( J 
V, � � 

0 1 -z. 
f· 

� 

,f> 
.:) 

C.O\I\CV� CD 1.. 

'\'\c..·,\ ,·"' "6 12.." � '::> \ '1 e e\ 30 Rc.c.\..z_ l 

1� I 'l 
5\-..0C\t<- ® 

1 � \D 

� 

4 3 

3a C. \ o..v\,<. e S \'< ee."\ 

J__ I l 
"-\ oTes � 

0 1) Q\l\oles � o \I\ u \N\'-""1., "Se\ 
5/a"'f... '3011 lR -- f<,L s. \28S 

• 'D e\1\-o"La W\. o V\ u W\ �l, tou v-. �

Equ \.�\Me;f L) seJ � \ .Sec <:3vV\

'6 

..--: 
]

L,\l\e. \J°'\�

5e� leV\�,� �ea.'+f \V\� 

(j) \0?. � N <o�0 s'2.'E 

(Z) \00 °...9 t'-4 'a�0oB E 
('3) so0� \'--1 oob oi U)
@ \00� SB�0 siw

6) \0?. "Z_b S ��o'SC.r Lu

�· S0
°
� S 00° 1.i � 

(D SDC::9 1'-.\ o <:�/:, o 'a1 uJ 

'o uv VQ.":j o\" l.a \s �cl:� �\ oc:.\,<.. \ 0 
""Q e�o e.. ��� > (:) 'I e�o \.A \-'--" Sec.\ \0 V\ "o) 

\ � S ., � \\\AlW'tv"'\ \_\V\cO\tA Ccu""'�' 
0°" � �O'v'\ 

�°'S.\.S a�� e..D."<\V\� [ O.S\ \ \-\1'...Sl o\ 
\-o\ S � lee_\,<. B. ( � 00° C 5 W) 
NE CeV\\AQ..f'or lo'\ S\3)<:>c.� & 

'vte\b �oy �OC.�'-OV\,

�e�v-<CA/\Ll.. \wv L-;l, zc,ao /z700 
�-\\-S(D 

cP Wl � '5,e e\ To.pe.. 

J"PME S f:\ P� ETH P. £.. 
lf\\'\D 5URUE..'-t'OR.. 'R.L-S. 

 
 

 
<3'1�(:,"? 

SEC. 5 ,<.?) S, R \\ LJ.W ., M.

L \�\COLN CDUN'r'-f 

FOR� -"R,�e kav\ 1?f'a. \ � 

Sc.o..\e � 1 ''� 100' 

Do.\e. 1: �/7:3/8-3 
'So\., � S� - 18G Page 91 of 92

regan
Polygon

regan
Polygon



CITY of DEPOE BAY 
Post Office Box 8 + Depoe Bay, Oregon 97341 

Phone (541) 765-2361 + Fax (541) 765-2129 
TDD# 1-800-735-2900 

January 23, 2024 

Thomas Regan 
VIA EMAIL: 

SUBJECT: T-Mobile Antennae at 50 NE Bechill Street, Depoe Bay, Oregon 97341 

Map & Tax Lot No. 09-11-05-CD-02400 

Dear Mr. Regan: 

On January 9, 2024, the City received your complaint about the T-Mobile antennae attached to 
the south side of the Travelodge motel at 50 NE Bechill Street, which is adjacent to your 
property at 205 NE Williams A venue. Your complaint alleges that the antennae encroach beyond 
the property line and onto your property. The antennae in question were approved though a 
conditional use permit (Case File #l-CU-PC-21) issued by the Depoe Bay Planning Commission 
in April 2021. 

Staff has reviewed your complaint and the accompanying evidence. Although the photographs 
suggest that the antennae may extend beyond the property line, they do not prove that there is an 
encroachment onto your property. The 1989 survey that you provided does not depict the 
location of the antennae relative to the property line because the antennae did not exist at the 
time that the survey was prepared. 

The City is unable to respond to your complaint in the absence of conclusive evidence of a 
property-line encroachment. The alleged encroachment of private improvements across the 
property line is a type of trespass, which may give you a private right of action against the 
property owner and/or their lessee. However, it is not currently a matter within the City's 
purview under the Depoe Bay Zoning Ordinance. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me at 
(541) 765-2361 x15 or planner@cityofdepoebay.org on Tuesdays and Wednesdays between
8:00 AM and 4:30 PM.Si7� 
tf.x,Z--
City Planner 

VIOLATIONS/2024/TRAVELODGEANTENNN20240123_REGAN_TRAVELODGET-MOBI LEANTENNA 

Page 92 of 92


	D.4_Accounts Payable Report.pdf
	Columbia Bank
	35087
	35088
	35089
	35090
	35091
	35092
	35093
	35094
	35095
	35096
	35097
	35098
	35100
	35101
	35102
	35103
	35104
	35105
	35106
	35107
	35108
	35109
	35110
	35111
	35112
	35113
	35114
	35115
	35116
	35117
	20230129 - Cashier's Check
	20240202 EFT UMPQUA

	Columbia Bank
	1150


	J.1c_20240206_Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna Complaint.pdf
	20240206_Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna
	Regan Complaint Form
	20240123_Regan_Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna

	J.1c_20240206_Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna Complaint_Redacted.pdf
	20240206_Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna
	Regan Complaint Form
	20240123_Regan_Travelodge T-Mobile Antenna


	complaint line 1: 
	complaint line 2: 
	complaint line 3: A cell tower was constructed on the south wall of the Travelodge Motel in Depoe Bay.  The
	complaint line 4: antenna and associated equipment encroach into our parcel (Tax Lot 09-11-05-CD-02700; 205
	complaint line 5: NE Williams Street), which is located immediately adjacent to the motel structure.  
	complaint line 6: 
	complaint line 7: Reference attached letter dated August 23, 2023.  The letter has details and documentation
	complaint line 8: related to the violation.  The letter was sent to the parcel owners in August 2023 but it was never
	complaint line 9: acknowledged or responded to.
	complaint line 10: 
	complaint line 11: 
	complaint line 12: 
	complaint line 13: 
	complaint line 14: 
	Location of Complaint 1: 205 NE Williams Street, encroachment from Travelodge Motel
	Location of Complaint 2: located at 50 NE Bechill Dtreet, Depoe Bay
	Street Address: 205 NE Williams Ave, Depoe Bay
	Work Phone: 
	Date: January 9, 2024


